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Release to Australian Stock Exchange

Annual Report

29 September 2004. The directors are pleased to submit the Annual Report for the 2003/2004 financial
year.

This report should be read in conjunction with the 2004 Results Summary provided with the Appendix 4
repott released to the ASX on 27 August. The Summary is available on the Redflex website at
www.redflex.com.au.

An updated Chairman’s report and CEQ’s report will be included with the Annual Report at the time it is
released for mailing to all shareholders. These reports will include information that is current to that time.
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Graham Davie Marilyn Stephens VOIS .
Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary { S
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REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

ACN 089 306 216

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors submit their report for the year ended 30 June 2004.

DIRECTORS
The names and detalls of the Company's Dlrectors in office during the financial year and until the date of this report are as follows,
Directors were in office for the entire period unless otherwise stated,

Names, qualifications, experience and special responsibilities

CHRISTOPHER COOPER~L LB, B.Com.
Non-executive Chairman

Mr Cooper has practised as a barrister and solicitor since 1977. He has been involved in commerdal real estate development, and
investment management as well as being an owner and operafor of aged care heaith facilities from 1985 fo 2601. Mr Cooper is also a
principal and agent manager for significant share investment portfolios and a Director and Manager of numerous private investment
companies and trusts.

ROBIN DEBERNARDI

Non Executive Director

Mr Debemardi is a prominent businessman who established and developed a range of products in a horticultural business, the
success of which is that it is now known as a household name in the industry. Mr Debernardi has since been successfully engaged in
commercial property developments in Victoria and Queensland, while develaping a rural property in North Central Vicloria. He brings
substantial experience in assisting companies involved in high growth phases of their development.

PETER LEWINSKY ~ B E¢, MBA, FCA, FSIA
Non Executive Director - (Appointed 16 October 2003)

Mr Lewinsky has conducted a private investment banking and corporate advisory practice since 1981 following 12 years investment
banking and stockbroking experience both in Australia and internationally. My Lewinsky has undertaken a range of corporate finance
transactions and managed a number of major projects for the Boards and shareholders of public, private and government
ofganizations drawing on his experiance in chartered accountancy, investment banking, stockbroking and private practice.

Over the last 10 years Mr Lewinsky has held a number of Board and Audit Committee appointments for public, private and government
organizations.

GRAHAM DAVIE ~ BSc, Grad Dip Mil Av

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Davie is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and has previously held the position of Managing Director of the Communications
business since 1993. He has had ten years experience with the RAAF In engineering design and development, maintenarce
engineering, software development and support, specification of major systems, and project management.

His expertise aiso includas airborne avionics, flight simulation, avionics automatic test equipment, air traffic control communications
and confrof systems, alrport information display systems, and development of graphics software and system support

BRUCE RIGGINS -B Eng {Elect}, MBA, FAIC

Exacutive Diractor - CEC Readflex Traffic Systems inc—~ (Appointed 16 January 2004)

Mr Higgins has held senior management roles with a number of global companies in the automation technelogy and aerospace
industries.

Mr. Higgins has studisd compstitive advantage with Harvard Univarsity, and has & Bachelor Degree in Electronic Enginsaring, Master
of Business Administration in Technology Management and is a Fallow of the Australian Insfitute of Company Diractors.

Mr. Higgins is now President & Chief Executive Officer of Redflex Traffic Systems inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Redfiex Holdings
Limited. He is currently based in the USA corporate offices in Scottsdale Arizona and leads the Redfiex Traffic Systems business
globally. Mr Higgine has served the Company in this role since August 2001,

COMPANY SECRETARY
MARILYN STEPHENS

Ms Stephens has been the Company Secretary of Redflex Holdings Limited since it listed on tha Ausfralian Stock Exchange in
February 1887. Prior to that Ms Stephans was the Company Secretary and Adminisiration Manager to various companies within the
Radfiex Group.




Directors’ Interasts

The Interest of each director In the share capital of Redflex Holdings Limited, at the date of this Report, as contained in the Register of

Directors' Shareholding of the Company is:

Director Retevant Interast over

Ordinary Shares
Chris Cooper 747,080
Raobin Debernardt 3,224,373
Peter Lewingky 41,800
Graham Davie 1,086,770
Bruce Higgins 0

Options over Ordinary
Sharas

0

o

0

D

1,800,000

Directors' interests in Options together with terms and conditions are set out in Notes 19 and 23.

Issue of Shares

During the year the Company issued the following shares:

A U e

tssue of Options

During the year ended 30 June 2004, the following Options were issued:

3,275,035 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of Options at a price of $1.10 per share fully paid.

7,944,184 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of private placement at a price of $0.8475 per share fully paid.

4,098,494 Ordinary Shares wers issued by way of a Share Purchase Plan al a price of $0.8475 per share fully paid.

100,000 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of unlisted employee Options at & price of $0.89 per share fully paid
30,000 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of unlisted employes Options at a price of $0.5884 per share fully paid.
70,000 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of unlisted employes Options at a price of $0.5209 per share fully paid

1 1,800,000 Options aver Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $0.50.

2 2,655,000 Options aver Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $0.58 compounding at 3% p.a. until exercised

3 1,348,000 Options over Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $2.06 compounding at the increase rate in the All Ordinaries

Index until exercised.

Expiration of Options

6,261,796 Opticns issued at an exercise price of $1.10 expired on 31 Dscember 2003, Of these Options 3,275,035 were exercised.

The remaining Options expired.

Unissued shares

As at 30 June 2004 and at the date of this report there were 6,323,000 unissued ordinary shares under Options. Refer to Note 14 for

further details of the Cptions cutstanding.

Basic Eamings per Share

Diluted Earnings per Share

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares used in calculation of

Earnings per Share

Waightod average number of Ordinary Shares used in calculation of

diluted Earnings per Share

Net tangible assat backing per ordinary security

Dividends

30 June 2004 30 June 2003
4.36 cents (6.6 cents)
4.20 cents {6.6 cenfs)

76,014,688 56,250,530
79,187,732 56,250,530
49.1 cents 44.0 cents

The Company did not propose or pay any dividends in the year ended 30 June 2004 (2003 — Nil).




Summarised operating results are as follows:

Tha Company showad revenue from operating activities of $33,060,064 which was up 40.7% on the previous finandal year (2003 -
$23,499,813).

The increase in revenue was dus fo:

* Anincrease in tha number of ravenue generating camera installations within our USA Build Own Operats and Maintain business
from 135 at 30 June 2003 to 301 at 30 June 2004.

»  The increase was offset in part by the move in the AUD/USD exchange rate by approximately 8% reducing the reported revenue
from the growing USA Traffic business and Communication division revenues within the USA due to translation effects.

The consalidated operating profit of the Consolidated Enfity for the year ended 30 Juns 2004 after income tax of $nil was $3,315,686
(2003 — loss of $3,736,886).

The operating loss of Redflex Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 June 2004 affer income tax of Snif was $15,253,858 (2003 — less
of $2,638,521).

Principal Activities

During the year, the principal activities of entities within the Consolidated Entity ware:

. Management and operation of Build, Own, Operate and Meintain Traffic enforcement business for the USA market;
commaercialisation of the Redflex Traffic image Processing Software and associated traffic violation management systems and
hardware world-wide.

. Commercialisation and development of technology associated with voice and data digital switching and related communications
systems.

Operating results by business and geographical segments are as foliows:

(a} Business Segments

Corporate Communication Traffic 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03

) Totat Totat

$(000) $(000) ${000) ${000) $(000)

Revenue from sale of goods & 8,473 7.334 15,807 12,999
services

Revenue from fee for service o} 17,253 17,253 10,501
cantracts

Total ravenue from operating 8,473 24 587 33,080 23,500
activities

Consolidaled operating profit before {1,444} {946) 5,705 3,315 {(3.736)

tax

Total agsets 2,016 11,353 45799 59,168 44,768

{b) Geographical segments Australia USA Other 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03

Totat Total

$(000) $(000) $(000) $(000) $(000)

Revenue from sale of goods & 5480 8,605 1,722 18,807 12,898
services

Revenue from fee for service 4 17,253 o] 17,253 10,501
contracts

Total revenue from operaling 5,480 25,858 1,722 33,060 23,500
activities

Total assets 18,021 39,247 0 58,168 44,768




Corporate Information

Redftex Holdings Limifed is a company limited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in Austrafia. Redflex Holdings Limited has
prepared a consolidated finandial report incorporating the entities thet it controlied during the ysar and as detailed in Nofe 8 to the
accounts. The Consolidated Entity employed 185 employees as at 30 June 2004 (2003: 150 employses).

Readflax Traffic Systams USA business

Redflex has maintained and extended its position as the largest provider of digital red light photo enforcement services in Naorth
America, with contracts in 53 cities and towns across eleven states. Redflex has led the market in the number of red light photo
enforcement sysiems installed over a 12-month period and hased on new contracts signed is the leading vendor by market share over
the past 12 months.

Tha installation of the 301st system was announced on15th July, representing a growth rate of 123% in installed systems, from the
135 systems installed at 1 July 2003, OQver the second half of the financial year Redflex installed 89 systems representing a growth
rate of 42% for the half. We have a strong portiolio of signed confracts with USA municipalities that support continued installation at
rates In excess of 17 systems per month.

During the year we achieved a record in order intake with 28 cities confracting with Redflex for new photo enforcement programs. This
is particulartly pleasing as our strategy to extend our reach into the USA market with our geographic presence is on track and we have
demonstrated our ability to grow within markets where our competitors have existing business. We also executed changes or
renewals with seven existing clients and achiaved a 100% retention of exisfing clients.

The pipeline of selections, bids and prospects is strong, and the overall market environment both with prospective clients and the
general public strongly supports our business modet and value proposition. New states within the USA have legislative initiatives In
progress that expand our market opportunity.

Back office pracessing operations are meeting the processing requirements created by the strong instaliation program and growth in
new cities. The improved efficiency of our software systems and processes has been improved to enable a lower operating expsnse
on an average aclivity basis. We assess our operations efficiency to be the best in the indusiry on a cost per citation basis based on
the data available.

Redflex Traffic Systems Non USA based business

Non-USA based business includes Australia, South Africa, United Kingdom, Europe and the Middle East.
Market share in Australia has continued to strengthen, with Redflex the numbar one digital enforcement company in the market.

The Australia based Traffic business has also delivered impressive performance with contracts signed in a number of jurisdictions, and
development of key opportunities. Major new contracts announced were: The West Australian Back Office Development, a point-to-
point speed system for the Roads and Traffic Authority in NSW, sales of camera systems, bath fixed and the moblle LaserCam to
South Africa, sales of the LaserCam product to customers in the UK, maintenance arrangements in NSW, and a contract to supply
speed cameras io Tasmania. The Company operates in a competitive environment and has demonstrated its superior capabilities to
this range of customers.

During this period, Redflex acquired the assets ardd intellectual property of its fargest local compefitor, Poltech International Limited
and Hls subsidiary Lockfronic Pty Lid. The integration of fhe Poltech products, selected staff and infelleciual property has been
completed and the benefits have exceeded expectations, Additional maintenance contracls, upgrades and support services have
been contracted for and delivered for Poltsch cameras in NSW and Tasmania. Sales of four Lassrcam systems to South Africa have
been made.

The Redflex presence in Europe continues to grow, with sales of the Lasercam Mobile Spsed Enforcemeni Camera in the UK. An
office has been sstablished in the United Kingdom with the appointment of a Directer of Sales and technical staff. Redflex has also
recelved an order for a pilot camera system In Graace for fixed spasd pholo enforcement o be inslalled after the Olympics. Within
Europe we are selsctively looking for opportunities to apply our technology and business modsls to this market.

The research and development program for the Traffic business has conlinued with new projects committed to maintain our leadership
with existing products and development of new products. Expenditure on R&D will continue through the 2004/05 financial year to meet
identified needs for new products that meet our raturn on invesiment critera.

Manufacturing capacity of photo enforcement systems has increased to meet the increased demand for government clients and o
support the higher installation schedule for USA systems. Our capacity to manufacture photo enforcement systems meets our
requirements.

Readflex Communications Systems

The Communications Division, after a poor result in the first haif (an operating loss of $869,000}, has shown significant improvement in
the second haif and recorded an operating loss of $77,000 for that peried. Ths Is below expectations howaver a profit is projected for
the 2004/05 financial year and a significant amount of the revenues necessary 1o achieve the result are commitied.

Qver the year progress was made in defivering complex communications systems o key clients, including the Royal Austrglian Air
Force, Lockhesd Martin, Tanix Defenca Systems and the US Department of Dofanse,




The following contracts have been signed with key customers since July 2003,

A secure voice conferencing system and a secure video conferancing factity for the US Army, a deployable communications system
was defivered fo the US Navy, and communications systems were provided and installed for the US Air Force in the UK,

A major contract has been won in conjunction with Innovative Sclutions in the USA to provide communications for the US Air Force as
part of the Battlefield Control System — Mobile. This contract is sxpected to result in revenuas of up to $17 million over the next 5
Yyears.

An Australian Government START grant of $2.8 million for Research and Development was awarded to Redflex Communications to
assist with the development of the next generation Switchplus® Gen3 product over a period of fwe and a half years.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Redflex Group not ctherwise dealt with in this report.

Likely developments and expected results

The most significant growth for the ensuing financial year is expscted within the Traffic Division. The Company has sei internal
instaliation rates for cameras within the USA which can be met predeminantly from exising contracts and selections. This growth will
be funded from the cash generated from oparations togethar with an approptiaie debt funding aiready in place.

After balance date events

There were no after balance date events of significance not otherwise dealt with in this report, other than the finalisation of a USD 13
million debt facility to fund the growth within the USA Traffic Division. The initial draw-down was used to repay the National Australia
Bank debt faciliies. This facility is explained further in note 12 to the accounts.

Environmental Regutation and Performance

The Directors are rot awara of any breaches of environmental legistation affecting the industry in which the Group operates.
Remuneration Policy

A Remuneration Committes, cumrently comprising all members of the Board, has been formed to review fulure remuneration

arrangements for the Direclors and executive team. The Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration is determined by the Board.

Emotuments of Directors of Redfiex Holdings Limited

Base Fee Bonus  Superannuation & Options Total
$ & Other $ 3
$
Chris Cooper 0 o] 3,000 0 3.000
Rabin Debernardi 0 0 3,000 0 3.000
Peter Lewinsky 28,000 0 2,520 0 30,520
Graham Davie 160,810 26,306 14,474 o 201,590
Bruce Higgins 318,702 79,875 86,957 429,631 914,065

Prior fo his appointment as a director on 18 October 2003, Mr Lewinsky was retained as a corporate advisory consultant and received
fees of $14,000 for services provided to that date.

Emoluments of the five most highly paid executive officars of the Company and ths Consolidated Entity.

The Direcfors have defermined the officers of the Company fo be the key managers of the business units and the Chief Financial
Officer.

Emotuments Bass Salary Bonus Syperannuation & Ogpticas Total
$ $ Other $ §
$
Aaron Rosenberg Vice President Sales & 209,358 43,459 6,547 84,138 343,502
Marketing- Redflex Traffic
Systems Inc
Karen Finley Vice President Operations- 201,413 14,228 5,845 84,138 302,624
Redflex Traffic Systems inc
Ricardo Fiusco General Manager — Australia 150,229 33,000 13,521 84,138 280,888
Redflex Traffic Sysfems
Ron Johnson Chief Financiat Officer 152,660 0 13,740 84,138 250,538
Peter Harrison General Manager — Redflex 130,000 a 10,935 84,138 225,073

Cemmunications Systems




The Company uses the fair value measurement provisions of AASE 1048 "Director and Executive Disciosures for Disclosing Entities”
and the pending AASB 2 "Share-based payment® prospectively for all Options granfed 1o directors and relevant executives, which have
not vested as at 1 July 2003. The fair value of such grants is belng amortised and disclosed as part of director and executive
emoluments on & straight-line basis over the vesting period. No adjustments have been made or will be made to reverse amounts that
never vest (ie forfeitures),

From 1 July 2003, Options granted as part of director and executive emoluments have been independently valued using a Black-
Scholes oplion pricing model, which takes account of factors including the option exercise price, the current level and volatility of the
underlying share price, the risk-free interest rate, expected dividends on the underlying share, current market price of the underlying
shars and the expacted life of the option.

Fair Values of Opfions

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of the grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the foliowing
weighted average assumptions used for grants made on 30 June 2004, 2003 and 2002. The valuation of the Options was performed
independently by Pitcher Partners.

Biack-Scholes option formula RDFAR RDFAS RDFAT
Share Price 8900 .8900 2.2200
Exercise price 5000 .5859 2.0600
Expected volatifity 33% 33% 33%
Risk-free interest rate 8521% 521% 8.52%
Expscted life of option 5 yesrs 5 years 5 years

The dividend vield reflects the assumption that no dividend has been previously paid nor will be paid untii FY08. The expected {ife of
the option Is the maximum period aliowable and is not necessarlly Indicative of exerclse patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future frends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

The resulting weighted average fair values per option for those Options vesting after 1 July 2003 ara:

ROFAR RDFAS ROFAT TOTAL
Number of Options 1,800,000 2,655,000 1,348,000 5,803,000
Weighted average fair valua
30 June 2004 429,631 551,573 18.437 1,600,641
30 June 2005 112,144 227,724 242,037 581,805
30 June 2006 14,518 61,959 100,494 176,972
30 June 2007 0 0 36,988 35,898
556,204 841,256 397,987 1,795,517

Indemnification of Officers and Auditors

The Company has agreed to indemnify the following current Directors of the Company: Chiristopher Cooper, Robin Debernardi, Peter
Lewinsky, Graham Davie, Bruce Higgins and the Company Secretary and all executive officers of the Company and of any related
body corporate, against any lability that may arise from their position within the Company. The contract of insurance profuibits
disclosure of the nafure of the liability indemnified.

Redflex Holdings Limited, being the ultimate parent entity, paid premiums in respect of Directors and Officers liability insurance during
the financial year. The contract of insurance does not include detalls of premiums paid in respect of individual officers of the Company
and prohibits disclosure of the amount of the premium paid.

The Company has not otherwiss, during or sincs the end of the financlal year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify any auditor of the
Company, or any related entity, against a liability incurred in their capacity as an auditor.

Directors’ Moatings

Directors’ meefings held and attended during the year ended 30 June 2004, and up to the date of this report were:

No of Directors Meetings Number of Directors  Nomination Audit Remuneration
held while in office Meetings attended committee Committee Committes
Number of Meetings Held 2 2 2
Grzham Davie 21 24 2 2
Robin Debernardt 21 21 2 2 2
Christopher Cooper 21 20 2 2 2
Peter Lewinsky 15 15 2

Lrvea Winning 8 8




Ethical Standards

The Consolidated Entity has In place a Code of Conduct that Identifles the appropriate professional gonduct for its dealings with
shareholders, management, employees and other persons. The self-regulatory measures contained within this code are important in
increasing the swareness of shareholders, and others who deal with the Company, that Redflex Holdings Limited 1akes responsibility
for its own conduct so that they may foeel confident as fo the intagrity of the Company and its decision making processss.

This Code of Conduct has bean implemented by the Board of Directars, who review compliance with the code and review its contents
on an ongoing basis. ‘

The Code currently includes standards that cover respect for the law, integrity in all workplace and external dealings, diligence and
quality and equal opportunity. Cther standards and policles cover in more detsil the provision of a safe and heafthy workplace, fair
employment practices and share trading by employees and Directors.

ldentifying and managing business risks

The Board regularly monitors the operationatl and financial performance of the Campany and Consolidated Entity against budget and
other key performance measures. The Board also reviews and receives advice on areas of operational and financial risks.
Appropriate risk management strategies are developed to mitigate all significant identified risks of the business.

Tax Consolidation

For the purposes of income taxation, the directors of Redflex Holdings Limited and its 100% Australian owned subsidiaries infend to
form a tax consolidated group effective from 1 July 2003. Members of the group will enfet inlo a tax sharing arrangement in order to
aliocate income tax expense fo the wholly-owned subsidiaries on a pro-rata basls. In addition the agreement will provide for the
allocation of Income tax liabliities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations.

Corporate Governance

In recognising the need for the highsest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the Directers of Redflex Holdings Limited
support and have adhered to the principles of corporate governance. Redflex's carporafe governance statement is contained in the
foliowing section of this annuai report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Graham Davis
Director
Melbourne, 28 September 2004




Directors’ Declaration

Redflex Hotdings Limited ACN 069 306 216

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited, | state that:

in the opinion of the Direclors:

(a) the financlal statements and notes of the Company and of the cansolidated entity are in accordance with the Carporations Act
2001, induding:

(Y giving a true and fair view of the Company's and consolidated enfity’s financial position as at 30 June 2004 and of their
performance for the year ended en that dafe; and

(i complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payabls.

On behalf of the Board

Graham Davia
Director

Melbourne, 28 September 2004




Corporate Governance Statement
Redflex Holdings Limited ACN 069 306 216

The Board of Directors of Redfiex Holdings Limited is responsible for the corperate govemance of the Consolidated Entity. The Board
guides and monitors the business and affairs of Redflex Holdings Limited on behalf of the shareholders by whom they are elected and
to whom they are accountable.

The format of the Corporate Governance staternent has changed in comparison to the previous year due fo ths introduction of the
Austraffan Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Councit's “Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Praclice
Recommendstions®. In accordance with the Councils recommendations, the Corporate Governance Statement must now contain
certain specific information and must discloss the extent to which the Company has fallowed the guidelines during the peried. Where
a racommendation has not bean followed, that fact must be disclosad, logsther with the reasons for the depariure. Tha principles are:

Lay solld foundations for management and oversight.
Structure the Board to add value.

Promote ethical and responsible decislon making.
Safeguard integrity in financial reporting.

1

2

3

4

5. Makae timely and balanced disclosure.
6. Respect the rights of shareholders.
7. Recognise and manage risk.

8. Encourage enhanced performance.
9. Remunerate fairlly and responsibly,
1

0. Recognise the legitimate interests of stakeholders.

To ensure the Board is well equipped to discharge its responsibilities, it has established guidelines for the operation of the Board. [n
accordance with ASX Listing Rule 4.10.3, the Directors provide hereunder the main corporate governance practices of the
Consolidated Entity:

Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board is defermined in accordance with the fallowing principles and guldelines:
» the Board shall comprise at least three directors and should always maintain a majority of non-executive directors
«  the Chairman should be a non-erecutive director
*  the Board shall comprise directors with an appropriate range of qualifications and experience; and

v the Board shall meet al least monihly and follow meeting quidslines to ensure all necessary information is available to
particlpate in an informed discussion of all agenda items.

The Directors in office at the date of this report are

Mr Chris Cooper Chairman, Non-executive Director

Mr Robin Debernardi Non-executive Directer

Mr Peter Lewinsky Mon-executive Director

Mr Graham Davie Chief Executive Officer

Mr Bruce Higgins President and Chlef Executive Officer Redflex Traffic Systems Inc

Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited are considered to be independent when they are independent of management and free from any
business or other retationship that could materially interfere with — or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with — the
exercige of thelr unfettered ang independent jJudgment.

In the context of director independence, “materiality” is considered from both the Company and individual director perspective. The
determination of materiality requires consideration of both quantitative and qualitalive elements. An item is presumed to be
quantitatively immaterial if it is equal to or less than 5% of the appropriate base amount. it is presumed to be materiad (unless thers is
qualitative evidence to the contrary) if it is equal to or greater than 10% of the appropriate base amount. Qualitative factors considered
include whether a relationship is strategically important, the compstitive landscape, the nature of the relationship and the contractuat or
other arangements governing it and other factors which point fo the actual ability of the dirsctor in question fo shape the direction of
the Company’s loyalty.

in accordance with the definition above, and the materiality thresholds sef, the following directors of Redflex Holdings Limited are
considered to be independent:




Name Position Term in Office

Mr Chris Cooper Chairman, Non-executive Director 2 years
Mr Robin Debemardi Non-execufive Director 2 years
Mr Peter Lewinsky Non-executive Director 11 months

There are procedures in place, agreed by the Board, to enable directors, in furtherance of their duties, to seek independent
professional advice at the Company's expense.

For additional details regarding Board appointments, please refer fo our website.

Nomination Commitiee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee, which meets at least annually, to ensure that the Board continues to operate
within the established guidslines, including where necessary, selecting candidates for the position of Director. The Nomination
Committes comorises non-executive direciors. The Nomination Committee comprised the following members throughout the year:

Mr Christopher Cooper
Mr Robin Debernardi
Mr Peter Lewinsky

Mr Graham Davie

Mr Bruce Higgins

Mr Lewinsky and Mr Higgins became members subsequent to their own appointment. Any proposed Board appointments will be
determined by the tull Board.

Audit and Risk Management Committes

The Board has established an Audit and Risk Management Commitiee, which opsrates under a charter established by the Board. It is
the Board’s responsibility to ensure that an effective infernal control framework operates within the entity. This includes internal
controls to deal with both the effectiveness and efficiency of significant business processes, including the safeguarding of assets, the
maintenance of proper accounting records, and the reliability of financial information as well as non financlal considerations such as
the benchmarking of operational key performance indicators. The Board has delegated the responsibility for the establishment and
maintenance of a framework of intemal centrol and ethical standards for the management of the Consolidated Entity to the Audit and
Risk Management Committes.

The Committee also provides the Board with additional assurance regarding the reflability of financial information for inclusion in the
financial raports. All non-execufive Directors are currently on the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee during the year were;

Mr Poter Lowinsky Mr Lewinsky has conducted a private investment banking and corporate advisory practice since 1391
following 12 years investment banking and stockbroking experience both in Australia and internationally. Mr Lewinsky has undertaken
a range of corporate finance transactions and managed a number of major projscts for the Boards and shareholders of public, private
and government organizations drawing on his experience in chartered accountancy, investment banking, stockbroking and private
pracfice. Ovaer the last 10 years Mr Lewinsky has held a number of Board and Audit Committee appoinfments for public, private and
government organizations.

Mr Christopher Cooper  Mr Cooper has practised as a barrister and saticitor since 1977, He has been involved in commercial real
estate development, and investment management as well as being an owner and operator of aged care health facilities from 1985 to
2001. Mr Cooper is also a principal and agent manager for significant share investment portfolios and a Director and Manager of
numerous private investment companies and trusts,

Nr Robin Dabernardi Mr Debernardi is a prominent businessman who established and developed a range of products in a
horticultural business, the success of which is that it is now known as a housshold name in the industry. Mr Debernardi has since
been successfully engaged in commercial proparty developments in Vicloria and Queensland, while developing a rural property in
North Central Victoria. He brings substantial experience In assisting companies involved In high growth phases of their davelopment

The external auditor is invited to attend all Audit and Risk Committee meetings.

Tha Audit and Risk Management Committee is also respeonsible for directing and monitoring the internal audit function and nomination
of the external auditcr and reviewing the adequacy of the scope and quality of the annual statutory audit and half-year statutory review.

Remunaration Committea

ltis the Company's objective to provide maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board and executive team by
remunerating directors and key executtives fairdy and appropriately with reference to relevant employment market conditions. To assist
in achieving this objective, the Remuneration Committes links the nature and amount of executive directors’ ang officers’ emolumenis
to the Company's financial and operational performance. The expected outcomes of the remuneration structure are:




« retention and motivation of key executives
»  aftraction of quality managemaent to the Company
v performance initiatives which aflow execufives o share the rewards of the success of tha Company

There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits, other than statutory superarnuation, fo non-executive directors.

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the directors themselves and the Chief
Executive Officer and the execulive team. The Remuneration Commities is currently comprised of the following Directors:

Mr Chris Cooper
Mr Robln Debernardi
Br Graham Davie

Board Responsibilities
As the Board adts on behalf of and is accountable to the shareholders, the Board seeks to identify the expectafions of the

shareholders, as well as other regulatory and ethical expsctations and cbligations. In addifion, the Board is responsible for identifying
areas of significant business rsk and ensuring arrangements are in place to adequately manage those risks.

The responsibility for the operation and administration of the Consolidated Entity Is delegated by the Board to the Chief Execulive
Officer and the execulive team. The Bosrd assures that this leam is adequstely qualified and experienced o discharge their
responsibiliies and has in place procedures to assess the performance of the chief executive and the executive team.

The Board Is responsible for ensuring that management's objeciives and activities are aligned with the expectations and risks identified
by the board. To ensure this is achieved the board has a number of mechanisms in place, including:

The Board approves strategic plans, operating plana and budgets. The Board also reviews implementation by management, monitors
progress against budget, including establishment and monitoring of key performance Indicators for all significant business processes,
designed to meet stakeholders’ needs and manage business risk.

The Board is actively involved in developing and approving iniiatives and strafegies designed to ensure the continued growth and
success of the entity, including:

. sstablishment of committees fo report on occupational heatth and safety and shwircnmental issues and concerns;
= procedures to allow directors to seek profassional independent advice at the Company's expense;

«  procedures to allow directors to review approval of major confracts and financing arrangements including financial risk in
such areas as currency, interest rate and credit policles and exposures, and o monitor management's aclions to ensure
they are in line with Company policy.

Monitoring of the Board's Performance and Communication to Shareholders

In order to ensure the Board continues to discharge it's responsibilities in an appropriate manner, the performance of all directors is
reviewed annually by the Chalrman. If the perfonmance of a Director was considered unsatisfactory, they would be asked to retire.

\nformation is communicated to shareholders through:
«  Thae annual report which is distributed fo all shareholders
«  The half-ysarly report which is made available by w}ay of an ASX relsass.
«  The annuai general mesting

*  ASX raleases in accordance with the entity's continuous disclosure policy

«  Information available on the Company's website at www red{les com au

»  Public and private briefings. Any new material information which is released at brisfings is made generaily available
concurrently by way of an ASX release




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Revenue from Ordinary Activities

Operating expenses

Materials & Consumables used

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Borrowing Costs

Salaries & Wages Expense

Outlays Capitalised in Research & Development
Other expenses from Ordinary activities
Specific items

Total expenses from Ordinary Activities

Profit (Loss) frorn Ordinary Actlvities befora
Income Tax

Income Tax (Expense) / Banefit attributable to
Ordinary Activitias

Net Profit | (Loss) attributable to members of
Redflex Holdings Limited

Net exchangae difference on translation of foreign
statements of foreign controlled enfity.

Equity raising coste

Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments
attributable to members of Redflex Holdings Limited

and recognised directly in equity

Total changes In equity not resulting from
transactions with owners as ownars

Basic earnings per share
Diuted earnings per share

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares used in

caleulation of Eamings per Share

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares used in

calcutation of Diluted Earnings per Share

Consolidated Enfity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 36-dun-04  30-Jun-03
Note $ $ $ $
2 33,312,292 23,516,739 1,508,627 1,707,216
£,869,048 5,889,099 0 0
4,808,543 3,706,804 125,249 107,061
373,607 141,764 13,812 144,764
13,453,312 12,140,971 560,809 742,643
(2,025,234)  (1,653.761) 0 0
3 7,732,993 2,128,177 968,420 1.814,526
3(a) {15,743} 5,180,571 15,094,185  1740,743
29,996,526 27,253,625 16,762,485 4,346,737
3,315,686  (3,736,886) (16,253,858) (2,639,521)
4 0 0 0 0
3,315,686  (3,736,886) {15,253,858) (2,630,521)
(4673473}  (2/926,294) 0 0
(37,381) {67.518) {37.,381) (67,518)
(4,710,854)  (2,993,812) {37,381) (67,518)
(1,395,168)  (6,730,698) {15,291,239) (2,707,039)
436 cents (6.6 cents)
420 cents (6.6 cents)
76,014,688 56,250,530
79,187,732 56,250,530



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2004

Consolidated Entity

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
Note $ $ $ S
Current Assets
Cash Assets 2,780,450 1,070,124 127,088 105,481
Term Deposits 11 1,239,898 1,627,425 585,000 1,641,134
Receivables &(a) 8,177,712 5,329,976 885,430 94,476
Inventories 7 10,278,569 10,548,386 0 o
Prepayments 1 354,481 328,031 354,481 263,071
22,831,110 18,003,922 1,751,999 2,004,162
Non-Current Assets
Receivables 6(b} 0 265,511 49,726,754 54,279,568
Investments 8 0 0 3,740,142 3,740,142
Property Plant & Equipment g 27,965,679 18,765,420 254,346 108,687
Intangibles 10 8,371,710 6,833,546 380,393 0
36,337,389 25,864,477 54,101,635 58,128,417
Total Assets 58,168,499 44,768,399 55,853,634 60,132,579
Current Liabilities
Payables 12 4,899,463 4,429,511 93,486 70,817
Borrowings 12 3,973,816 769,000 o 516,022
Employee Provisions 13 815,879 415,416 56,085 45,862
9,489,158 5,613,927 149,581 632,701
Non Current Liabilities
Borrowings 12 232,908 2,171,351 6,398,994 8,836,524
Employee Provisions 13 261,514 339,533 120,140 123,605
494,422 2,510,884 6,510,134 8,960,219
Total Liabilities 9,983,580 8,124,811 6,668,715 9,592,020
Net Assets 49,184,919 36,643,588 49,184,919 50,639,659
Equity
Contributed Equity 14 73,633,013 589,733,895 73,633,013 59,733,885
Forelgn Currency Translafion Reserve 14 7,802,347y  (3,128.874) 0 o
Accumnulated Losses 15 (16,8645,747)  (19,961,433) (24,448,094)  (9,194,238)
Total Equity 49,184,819 36,643,588 49,184,919 50,538,658




STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Consolidated Entity

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
Note $ $ $ 3

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers 30,464 476 22,256,603 o] 0
Payments to suppliers and employees (24,611,513) (26.352,573) 608,252 {4,198,955)
Inferest raceived 79,648 78,074 64,915 13,483
Interest and other costs of finance paid (373,607) {146,979) (13.812) {141,874)
Net Cash Flows from (Used in) operating activities 17 5,569,004  (4,164,875) 859,355  (4,327,186)
Cash Flows from Invasting Activities
Payments for property, ptant and equipment {16,446,080)  (6,586,73%) {250,887} (215,748)
Purchase of Goodwill (400,414) 0 {400,414) 0
Capitalised research and development (2,134,311} (1,813,6389) 0 0
Loans fo Related Parties 0 0 (11,198,283)  (8,334,099)
Net Cash Flows from (Used in) investing activities {18,980,815) (8,400,270) (11,849,584} (8,549,847)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Bank Borrowings 1,286,443 2,687,373 (2.687,373) 2,687,373
Lease liability incurred (4.067) 252,978 0 ]
Shareholder loans received {paid) 0 (292,121} 0 (292,121)
Cash proceeds from share Issues 13,936,580 10,653,154 13,936,580 10,653,154
Share Issus Costs (37,381) (67,518) (37,381) (67,518)
Net Cash Flows from {Used in) finandng activities 15,181,585 13,233,866 11,211,836 12,980,888
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash held 1,769,774 868,721 21,607 103,875
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash {49,448} Q o] g
Cash at Beginning of Financial Year 1,070,124 401,403 105,481 1,606
Cash at End of Financial Year 2,780,450 1,070,124 127,088 105,481
Reconciliation of Cash
Cash at the end of the year consists of:
Cash on hand 2,103 1,385 500 180
Cash at bank 2,778,347 1,088,739 126,588 105,301

2,780,450 1,070,124 127,088 105,481




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2004

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 which includes applicable Accounting Standards. Other mandatory professional reporting
requirements {Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views) have also been complied with. The accounting policies adopted are
consistent with those of the previous year. The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convertion.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are those of the Consolitiated Entity, comprising Redflex Holdings Limited (the
parent Company} and all entities controlled by the Company during the year. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
prepared for the same accounting peried as the parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. All intercompany
balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arlsing from intragroup transactions, have been eliminated in full.
Unreslised losses are eliminated unless costs canniot be recovered.

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparatives have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year disclogures.

The companias comprising the Redflex Group

Redflex Holdings Limited is the Chief Entity. Refer to note 8 for defails of aft entities comprising the Consalidated Entity

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks readily convertible to cash
within two working days at nominal value, net of any outstanding bark overdrafis where offset arrangements exist.

Intangibles
Research and Development Costs

Research and developmant costs are deferred only where they are expected fo give rise to significant future benefits.
Such costs are amortised over future periods on a basis related to those expected future benefits. The commencement
date for amortisation is the date of commissioning the product and capitatised costs are amortised over a ten year period.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired at the
time of acquisition of a business. Goodwill is amortised over the period which benefits are expected to be received which is
on a ten year straight line basis.

Foretgn Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies of entities within the Consolidated Entity are converted to local currency at the rate of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

Amounts payable to ang by the entities within the Consotidated Entity that ars outstanding at the balance date and are
denominated in foreign currencies have been converted to local curency using rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
financial year.

A monetary item arising under a foreign currency confract outstanding at the reporting date where the exchange rate for
the monetary item is fixed in the contract is translated at the exchange rate fixed in the contract. Excapt for certain forsign
currency options, all resulting exchange rate differences arlsing upon settlement or restatement are recognised as
revenues and expenses for the year.

All exchange differences arising on settlement or re-statement are brought to account in determining the profit or loss for
the financial year, and transacltions costs, premiums and discounts on forward currency coniracts are defersed and
amortised over the life of the contract. Premiums on foreign currency options are expensed as incurred.

The USA traffic entity is considered financially and operationally independent of the parent entity. Accordingly the financial
reports of the overseas oparations are transtated using the current rate method and any exchange differences are taken
dirsctly to the foreign currency translation raserve.



Leases

Leases are classified at their Inception as either financlal or operating leases based on the economic substance of the
agreament so as to reflact ths risks and benefits incidental to ownaership.

The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lassor effsctively retains substantially all of the risks and
benefits of ownership of the leased item, are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis.

Leases which effectively transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental fo ownership of the leased item to the
group are treated as financial leases and capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and disclosed as
property, plant & equipment. A lease liability of equal value is also recognised.

Capitalised tease assets are depraclated over the term of the lease. Minimum lease payments are allocated between
interest expense and reduction of the lease lability with the inferest expense calculated using the interest rats implicit in
the lease and recognised directly in the cperating resuits.

Property Plant & Equipment
Cost and Valuation

ltems of property plant and equipment comprising a class of non-current assets are brought to account at cost and have
not been revalued.

Depraciation

Depreciation rates are adopted as follows:

Furniture & Fittings: 13-18% pa reducing balance

Leasehold Improvamenta: 20% pa straight line

Property, Plant & Equipment: Straight line over a period of seven years

The depreciation rates are consistent with the prior year.
Taxes

Income Taxes

Tax-effect accounting is applied using the liability method whersby income tax is regarded as an sxpenss and is calculated
on the accounting profit after allowing for permanent differences. To the extent that timing differences occur between ths
time items are recognised in the financial slatements and when items are taken into account in determining taxable
income, the net related income tax benefit calculated at current rates, is treated as a future income tax benefit or deferred
incoma tax. Tax benefits arising from net fiming differences and carry forward tax losses are not brought to account as the
benefit which has not been brought to account will only be oblained if:

{iy future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enabla the benefit to be realised;
(i} the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with; and
(i} no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Consolidated Entity in realising the benefit.

Tax Consofidation

For the purposes of income taxation, the directors of Redflex Holdings Limited and its 100% Australian owned subsidiaries
intend to form a tax consolidated group. Members of the group will enter into a tax sharing arrangement in order to
allocate income tax expense fo the wholly owned subslidlaries on a prorata basls. in addition the agreement will provide
for the allocation of income tax liabilifies between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations.

Earnings per shars

Basic EPS is calculated as net profit attributable to members divided by the weighted average number of ortlinary shares,
adjusted for any bonus element where applicable. Diluted EPS is calculated as the net profit attributable to members,
adjusted for costs of servicing equity, the after tax effect of dividends and Interest associated with dilutive potential orginary
shares that have been recognised as expenses, and other non-discretionary changes in revenue and expenses during the
perlod that wouls resutt from the dilution of potentlal ordinary sharss divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus slement.

Investments

All investments are non-current and are carriad at the iower of cost and recoverable amount.

Employee Benefits

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a resuit of emplayees rendering services up fo the reporting date.
Thesa benefits indude salaries and wages, sick Isave and long service leave.

Any liabilities expected to be seitled within twelve months are measured at their nominal amounts based on remuneration
rates which are expected to be paid when the liability is sattled.

All other employee bensfit liabilities are measured at the present valua of the estimated future cash outflow to be made In
respect of services provided by employees up fo the reporting date. In determining the present value of future cash flows |




the market yield as at the reporting date on national government bonds, which have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related liability, are used.

The Consolidated Entity has adopted the revised Accounting Standard AASB 1028 "Employee Benefits" for the
measurement of employes beneft liabilities.

Recovarable Amounts

Norrcurrent assets are not carried at an amount above their recoverable amount. in determining the recoverable amount,
cash flows ars not discounted, and where carrying values sxceed this recoverable amount, assets are provided for.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue Is recognised to the exient that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenus is recognised:

Salo of Goods
Control of the goods has passed fo the buyer.

Rendering of Services
Where the contract outcome can be reliably measured:

control of a right to be compensated for the services has been aftained and the stage of completion can be religbly
measured. Stage of completion is measured by referenca to the material costs and labour hours incurred to date as a
percentage of total material costs and estimated labour hours for each contract.

Where the contract outcome cannot be reliably measured revenue is recognised only to the exfent that costs have been
incurred.

Unbilled conltract revenue

Unbilled contract revenue included in Work in progress represents revenue eamed by the Company in advance of being
billable under customer contract terms. Under the terms of some current contracts, the Company cannot bill the
municipality until the court has collected the citation fine. Management records unbilled contract revenue in these
situations, based upon a historical pattern of coliections by the courts for the municipalities. The pattern of collections on
these citations is continually reviewed and updated by management.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue arises from some contracts whereby the customer pays for services yet to be petformed. Revenue is
brought to account aver the period in which these services are provided.

Intgrest revenue

Confrot of the right to receive the interest payment.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
= Costs incurred in bringing each product fo its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
»  Raw Materials - purchase cost on a first-in-first-out basis; and

=  Finished goods and work-in-progress - cost of dirgct material and tabour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

» Infrastructure Components — Components held for resals or conversion into fixed in-ground instatlations for
traffic contracts is carried at cost. The conversion of these components to property, plant and equipment occurs
at the point newly contracted sites are commissioned.

Financial Instruments

The Consolidated Entity's accounting policies, including the terms and conditions of each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity Instrument, both recognised and unrecognised at the balance date, are as follows. Ths interest rate risk
and fair market valuation of financial instruments are shown in note 24,

Recognised financial instruments  Accounting Policies Terms and Conditions

() Financial Assets



Receivables —~ Trade

Rsceivables — Controlled Enfities

Receivables — Other Corporations

- Term deposits

Security Deposit

{il} Financial Liabilities
Bank Borrowings

Payables

Amount payable to Controlled Entities

{i) Equity
Ordinary Shares

Trade recsivables are carried at nominal
amounts due less any provision for doubtfut
debts. A provision for daubtful debis is
recognised when collection of the fufl
nominal amount is no longer probable.

Amounts {other than trade debts)
raceivable from related entities are carried
at nominal amounts due. interest (when
charged) s taken up as income on an
acerual basis,

Amounts (other than trade debts)
receivabla from non related parties/entities
are carried at nominal amournts due.
Interest (when chargedj) is taken up as
income on an accrual basis.

Short term deposits are predominantly in
USD and converted at year end rates. Thay
are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. interest is recognised
when earned

Security deposits are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Interest is
recognised when earned

Credit sales are on 30 day terms.

Loans are at call and non interest
bearing.

Loans and interest outstanding, if
any, are at call.

Short term deposils have an
average rmaturity of 90 days and
effective interest rates of batween
1.0% and 2%.

Security deposits remain for the
term of the lease ard achieve
effective interest rates of ~2%.

Bank borrawings are in USD, converted at year Interest is charged at the bank's
end exchange rates and carried at the principal benchmark rate plus margin.

amount. Interest Is charged as an expense as

it acerues.

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be
paid in the future for goods and services
recelved, whether or not bllled fo the
Consclidsted Entity.

Loans from related parties are carried at the
principal amount. Interest (when charged by
the lender) is taken up as an expense ont an
accrual basis.

Issued and paid-up capital is recognisad at the
fair value of the consideration received by the

Company.

Trade liabilities are normally
settled between 30 and 60 days.

Loans are at call and non interest
bearing.

Tha Company is authorised to
issue up to 200,000,000 Ordinary
Shares, Defails of shares issued
and the terms and conditions of
Options outstanding over Ordinary
Shares at balance date are set out
in Note 14.

Consolidated Entity Redftex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jur03 30-Jun~-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
NOTE 2 REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Revenus from operating activitiss:
Revenue from sale of goods & services 15,807,134 12,887,964 0
Revenue from fea for service contracts 17,252,930 10.501,949 0
Total reveniue from operating activities 33,060,064 23,499,913 0
Reveaniues from outside the operating activitias:
Interast from ofher persons 79,648 16,826 64,918 v
Grant Income 172,500 0 0 0
Management Fees 0 [4] 1,443,712 1,707,216
Total revenue from outside the operating activities 252,148 16,826 1,508,627 1,707,216
Total revenue from ordinary activities 33.312,212 23,516,738 1,508,627 1,707,216




NOTE 3 EXPENSES AND LOSSES

Movemaents in Work In Progress

Operating lease rental

Occupancy costs
Provision for Doublul Debts

Other expenses from operating activities

Depreciation of plant & equipment

Amortisation of infangibles

Materials & Consumables used
Interast expense other persons and corporations

Cutlays capitelised in Intangibles

Salarles & wage expense
Spacific expenses
Total expenses from ordinary activities

(3} Specific Expenses:

Profit from Ordinary activities before income tax
expense includes the following revenue and
expenses whose disclosura is relevant in
explaining the financial performance of the entity:

During the pravieus Financial Ysar the Company
disposed of a business where consideration for the
sale of the business includes payment from future
royalties. The Directors have reassessed and
pravided for the carrying value of the future
receivable due to the uncertainty relating o the
receipt of future royalties.

Provision for dimunition in related party receivables

Provision for writedown of recelvables emanating
from past Structured Finance transactions.

Foreign exchange osses arising fram inabllity to
hedge foreign currency receivables.

Non-racurring costs comprising:

costs assotiated with planned debt/equity financing
activity in the USA that was nct completed when a
more favourable financing option became avallable

and costs associated with group restructuring.

Provision for unrecovered loan balances relating to
the ESAS loan scheme.

Total Specific Expenses

Consolidated Entity Redfiex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
3 $ $ 5
2,563,115  (4,238,665) 0 0
248,428 340,971 0 0
1,491,402 957,645 267,878 82,111
27,0600 158,000 [ 0
3,402,958 4,911,228 700,542 1,532,415
7,732,993 2,128,477 968,420 1,614,526
3,811,982 2,938,747 105,228 107,061
996,561 768,057 20,021 0
4,808,543 3,706,804 125,249 107,061
5,660,048 5,599,099 0 0
373,607 141,764 13,812 0
(2,025,234)  (1,653,761) o] 0
13,453,312 12,140,971 560,809 742,643
(15,743) 5,180,571 15,094,195 1,740,743
29,996,526 27,253,625 16,762,485 4,346,737
0 1,250,000 0 1,250,000

0 0 15,484,838 0

375,000 350,000 Q 100,000

0 1,756,768 0 0
0 1,240,949 0 0

0 202,111 [ 3]
(380,743) 380,743 {380,743} 380,743
{15,743) 5,490,571 15,094,195 1,740,743




Acquisition of Businass Assats

Assets and Hablfiles acqulred were:

On 17 December 2003 the Company acquired the assets of Poltech International Limited and its subsidiary Locktronics Pty Lid. The
assets acquired included tnventory, fixed assets, intellectual property and access to contracts with a number of government agencles.
The allocation of the purchase price between asset categories was:

Invantory 362,865
Fixed assets 232,721
Goedwill on acquisition 400,414
Total assets 996,000
Consofidated Entity Redfiex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ )
NOTE4 INCOME TAX
The prima facie income tax on the profit (loss) from
operations is reconciled to the income tax
(expense)/benefit as follows:
Profit/{Loss) from Operations before Income Tax 3,315,868 (3,736,886) 15,291,239 (2,639,521)
The prima facie tax, using tax rates applicable in
Australia of 30% {2002 - 30%), on profit {loss) from
operations differs from the accounts as follows:
Prima facie tax on profit {foss) from operations 994,760 (1,121,066) 4,587,371 (791,856)
Tax sffect of permanent differences (547,223) (430,500) (4,618,047} 781,629
Under {over) provision in prior years 0 (305,055) 0 o
Carried forward (losses offset) benefits created (447 ,537) 1,246,511 (69,324) {10,227)
Income Tax Expense 0 0 0 0
Future income tax benefits from ¢/f income tax
losses timing differences not braught to account:
On revenue account 1,913,613 3,801,431 1,913,613 3,801,431
On capital account 417,223 417,223 417,223 417,223

The above future income tax benefit which has not been braught to account will only be obtained if:

{)  future assessable income Is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit to be realised;
(i} the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation centinue to be complied with; and

(i) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Consclidated Entity in realising the benefit

The Company has no franking credita.

During the year ended 30 June 1885 the Company sought and obtained & favourable private tax ruling relating to the eligibility of the
camied forward tax losses. As a result of issues identified in calculating these tax losses, the Company has sought advice as to whether
income derived by the Company from R&D Syndicafion is of a revenue or capital nature for taxation purposes, and also as to the extent
to which the tax losses available fo the Company are able o be used to offset that income. On the basis of advice received the
Company doeas not believe that any contingent liability exists regarding the eligibllity of carried forward tax losses.

Tax Consolidation

For the purposes of income taxation, the directors of Redflex Holdings Limited and its 100% Australian owned subsidiaries intend to
form a tax consolidated group. Members of the group will enter info a tax sharing arrangement in crder to allocate incoms tax expense
to the wholly owned subsidiaries on a prorata basis. In addition the agreement will provide for the allocation of income fax liabitities
betwesn the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations.

Consolidated Enfity Redflex HoldIngs Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-dun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
NOTES5 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Amount received or due and receivable by Ernst &
Young for:
Auditing the financial report of the entity ang
subsidiaries. 120,850 87,585 120,850 97,585
Auditing of separate financial statements for
subsldiaries within Australia 20,000 28,000 0 0
Auditing of separate financial statements for
subsidiaries outside Australia 108,857 112,327 0 0
Other advisory services 0 18,900 0 0

§ 246,707 256,812 120,850 97,585




NOTE &

NOTE 7

NOTE B

RECEIVABLES

{a) Current

Trade Debfors

Other Dabtors

Other Corporations
Provision for non-recovery

(b} Non Current

Contralled aentitias

Provision for dimunition in value
Other Corporations

Provision for non-recovery

INVENTORIES

Raw Materials — at cost

Work in Progress — at cast
Infrastructure Components — at cost

INVESTMENTS

Shares in controlled sntities

Controfled Entities of Redfiex Holdings Limited
Redfiex Limited

Aerospace Systems Lid

Sliverlene (R&D) Pty Ltd

Redfisx Traffic Systems Inc

Controlied Entities of Raedfiex Limited
Redflex Touchscreens Piy Lid

Redfiex Communications Systems Pty Lid
Redfiex Management Services Pty Lid
Radflex Finance Pty Ltd

Taglink Pty Ltd

Tiripa Pty Ltd

APR investments Pie Lid {a)

Redprime Pty Ltd

Controlled Entities of Redflex Communications
Systems Pty Ltd
Redflex Communication Systems Inc

Controfled Entities of Redflex Traffic Systems Inc

Redfiex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd

Redflex Traffic Systems (California) Inc formerly
Traffic Safety Systems Inc

(ay This Company is hol audited by Ernst & Young, Redflex Holdings Limited's auditors.

Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
8 $ $ $
7,620,896 4,950,266 ¢] 0
588,112 783,417 685,430 183,723
1,434,450 290,293 448,753 446,753
{1,448,848) (704,000) (448,753) (548,000)
8,477,712 5,329,076 685,430 94 476
a 1] 85,211,692 54,091,828
0 0 (15,484,938} 0
783,684 1,778,511 783,684 1,241,759
{783,684) {1,514,000) (783,684) (1,054,000}
0 265,511 49,726,754 £4,279,588
8,177,712 5,585 487 50,412,184 54,374,084

Consclidated Entity

Redfiex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-dun-03

$ $ $ $

1,379,895 1,221,367 0 0

3,368,277 5,832,392 1] 0

5,529,397 3,384,607 0 0

10,278,569 10,548,388 0 g

Country of % Owned Investmant in Subsidiary
Incorporation

30-Jun-04  30-Jun-03

Aust 100
Aust 100
Aust 100
USA 100
Aust 100
Aust 100
Aust 100
Aust 100
Aust 100
Aust 100
Singapore 100
Aust 100
USA 100
Aust 100
USA 100

100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100

100
100

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ 3
3,356,668 3,356,668
100,003 100,003
283,470 283,470

1 1
3,740,142 3,740,142




NOTE 9

PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENTY
Froperty plant & equipment. at cost

Furniture and Fittings
Leasehold Improvements
Plart and Equipment

Less Accumulated depraciation

Furniture and Fittings
Leasehold Improvements
Plant and Equipment

Total Writter Down Amount

Fumnitusre and Fittings
Carrying amount at beginning
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation Expense

Leasehold Improvements
Carrying amount at beginning
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation Expense

Plant & Equipment

Carrying amount at beginning
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation Expense

Total Written Down Amount

NOTE 10 INTANGIBLES

Resaarch and Development Expenditure

Capitalised (at Cost)

Less accumulated amortisation
Goodwill at casf

Less accumulated amortisation

NOTE 11 OTHER ASSETS

Current -
Prepayments
Security Deposlts

Consclidated Entity

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ 8
572,248 747,581 132,312 72,375
302,298 355,699 166,622 69,283
37,531,183 25,574,747 608,572 74,110
38,405,737 26,678,027 897,506 215,748
{389,989) {473,042) {121,856) (32,337}
(183,164) (200,297} (144,610) (40,319)
{8,8686,905) {7.,239,268) (376,894) (34,405)
{10,440,058) {7,912,607) (643,160} (107,081)
27,965,679 18,765,420 254 346 108,687
Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings
Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-04
$
274,539 40,038
55,691 1,397
(42,657) {2,657)
(144,100) (28,122)
143,473 10,656
155,402 28,944
38,773 o]
{34,798) (4,798)
{40,245) {12,134)
118,132 12,012
18,335,479 39,705
12,895,232 256,946
0 0
{3,627,637) {64.973)
27,703,074 231,678
27,985 679 254,348
Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ 3 $ $
10,603,451 8,469,141 0 0
(2.612,134) (1,635,594) 1] 0
400,414 Q 400,414 0
{20,021) 0 (20,021) 0
8,371,710 6,833,547 380,393 o]
Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ 3 3 3
354,481 328,031 354,481 263,071
1,239,898 1,627,545 585,000 1,541,134
1,504,379 1,055,456 930,481 1,804,205




NOTE 12

NOTE 13

Consolidated Entity Redfiex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
PAYABLES & INTEREST BEARING
LIABILITIES
{a) Current - Payables ‘
Trade Creditors 2,777,062 3,527,923 0 0
Deferred Revenue 428,987 0 o 0
Cther Creditors . 1,493,424 901,588 93,486 70.817
4,689,463 4,429,511 93,486 70,817
Currant - Borrowings
Bank Borrowings 3,761,801 516,022 0 516,022
Lease liability 212,015 252,978 Y] 0
3,873,816 769,000 0 516,022
{b} Non-current - Borrowings
Bank Borrowings 0 2,171,351 0 2,171,354
Lease liability 232,908 0 0 0
Amount Payable to Controlled Enfities 0 0 6,398,994 6,665,173
232,908 2,171,351 6,398,994 8,836,524
8,006,187 7,369,862 6,492,480 9,423,363

During the year the Company's banker, National Australia Bank provided a USD 5.0 million loan facility secured by a
Mortgage Debenture over the assets and undertakings of Redflex Holdings Limited and its subsidiares. Of this amount
USD 3.585 million was drawn at 30 June 2004,

Subsequent to year snd the Company acquired & USD 13 million secured Revelving Credit Fadility to fund the growth
within the USA Traffic Division. The initial draw-down was used to repay the National Australia Bank debt factlities. The
debenture held by the National Australia Bank over all the Redflex Traffic companies was removed.

The new financier, Narris Trust and Savings Bank, was granted a first and only priosity senior security interest in Redflex
Traffic Systems Inc and its subsidiaries {Note 8)

Lease liabilities are secured by way of a charge over the leased assets.

Consclidated Entity Redflex Holdinga Limited '
30-Jun-04 30-4un-03 30-Jun-04 30-4un-03
$ $ S $
EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS
(a) Current
Provision for Employee Bensfits 815,879 415416 58,005 45 862
{b) Non-currant
Provision for Employee Benefits 261,514 339,533 120,140 123,695
1,077,393 754,949 176,235 169,557

An employee share plan has baen established where Radfiex may, at the discretion of the Remuneration Committae, grant Options to
executives and certain members of staff of the Consolidated Entity. The Oplions, issued for nil consideration, are granted in accordance
with performance guidelines established by the Directors. The Opfions are issued for a term of 5 years. The Options cannot be
transferred and will not be quoted on the ASX. There are currently 9 executives and 23 staff sligible for this scheme.

ROFAM RDFAOD RDFAP RDFAK RDFAR RDFAS RDFAT
Grant date 16/10/2003 211512001 1/2/2001  16/9/1938  26/9/2003  26/%/2003  1/6/2004
Vesting date 811011999 20/5/2001 1/2/2001 16/9/1998 (i) {ii) [{0);
Expiry date 8/8/2004 20/5/2006  11/1/2006  16/9/2003 5 years 5 yaars 5 years
Weighted average Exercise Price 5297 $1.52 $1.66 $0.69 $0.50 305653  $2.0600
Number of Opfions at beginning of 40,000 80,000 20,000 100,000 Q 0 0
year
Number of Options exercised 0] 0 0 (100,000) 0 {100,000) 0
Number of Qptions expired 0 0 o] 0 0 0 [
Number of Options granted 0 0 [4] ¢ 1,800,000 2,655.000 1,348,000

Number of Opfions at end of year 40,000 60,000 20,000 0 1,800,000 2,555,000 1,348,000




{iy The vesting date for RDFAR Options are one third on 1 February 2004 with the balance vesting on a monthly basis pro-rata
through to 1 February 2006.

(i The vesting date for RDFAS Opfions are one third on each of 1 February 2004, 2005 end 2006,
{iil) The vesting date for RDFAT Options are one third on each of 1 June 2005, 2006 ang 2007,

Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ 3 $ $
NOTE 14 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
lssued and paid up capitat
83,141,433 Ordinary Sharss fully paid, (2003 -
67,623,720 Shares) 73,633,013 59,733,895 73,633,013 59,733,895
Options
Quoted Options Nil (2003: 6,261,796 ) 0 0 0 0
Unguoted Employee Options (2003-220,000)
Number Grant Date Vesting Date Expiry Date Exercise Price
40,000 8/8/1599 8/8/1999 8/812004 $2.97
60,000 20/5/2001  20/8/2001 20/5/2006 $1.52
20,000 11712001 11/1/2001 1111712006 $1.66
1,800,000 26/9/2003 (i} 5 years $0.50
2,555,000 26/9/2003 (i) 5 years $0.5859
1,348,000 1/6/2004 {iit) 5 years $2.06
Unquoted Non-employas Options
500,000 29/6/2000 30/6/2004 30/6/2005 $4.98
; Number of
Movements in Shares on issue Shares $
Beginning of the Financial Year 67,823,720 60,733,895
tssued during the year by -
Private Placement 7.844,184 6,732,606
Conversion of Options 3,475,035 3,730,328
Share Purchase Plan 4,098,494 3,473,474
Less Transaction Costs {37,381}
83,141,433 73,633,013
. Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
% $ $ 5
Foreign Currency Translation Raserve
Beginning of the Financial Year (3,128,874} {202,580} 0 0
Effect of Exchange rate movement on translation (4673,473)  (2,926,284) 0 0
End of the Financial Year {7.802,347)  (3.,128,874) 0 0

The Foreign Currency Translation Reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the transtation of the
financial statements of self sustaining foreign operations.

(i} The vesting date for RDFAR Options are one third on 1 February 2004 with the balance vesting on a monthly basis pro-
rata through fo 1 February 2006.

{il) The vesting date for RDFAS Options are one third on each of 1 February 2004, 2005 and 20086.

(iii} The vesting date for RDFAT Options are one third on each of 1 June 2005, 2006 and 2007,




Movemants in Issued Capital

Issue of Shares
During the year the Company issued the following shares:

3,275,035 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of Options at a price of $1.10 per share fully paid.
7,844,184 Ordinary Shares were Issued by way of private placement at a price of $0.8475 per share fully pald.
4,098,484 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of a Share Purchase Plan af a price of $0.8475 per share fully paid.
100,000 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of unlisted employee Options at $0.69 per share fully paid
30,000 Ordinary Sharas wers issusd by way of convarsion of unlistad employae Options al $0.5894 per sharae fully paid.
70,000 Ordinary Shares wers Issued by way of conversion of unlisted employse Options at $0.5909 per share fully paid

> W

@ @

Issue of Options
During the year ended 30 June 2004, the following Options were issuad:

1. 1,800,000 Options over Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $0.50.

2. 2,655,000 Options over Drdinary Shares at an exercise price of $0.58 compounding at 3% p.a. until exercised
1,348,000 Options over Ordinary Shares al an exercise price of $2.06 compounding at the rate of increase In the Al
Ordinaries Index until exercised.

Expiration of Options

6,261,796 Options issued at an exercise price of $1.10 expired on 31 December 2003. Of these Options 3,275,035 were exercised. The
remaining Options expired.

Redffex Employee Share Acquisition Scheme and Redfiex Employss Option Plan

Redflex Holdings Limited has established the Redflex Employee Share Acquisition Scheme ang the Redflex Employse Option Plan.
Options are allocated to employees based on seniority with management discretion permissible.
The terms of the Employse Share Acquisition Scheme provide for loans to eligible amployees of up to 85% of the issue price of shares

in Radflex Holdings Limited, repayable in five years. The terms of thess loans provide, amongst other things, that the final amount
payable shall not exceed the market vatue of the shares purchased under the loan arrangement.

Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
3 $ ) )
NOTE 15 ACCUMULATED LOSSES
Balance at Beginning of year (19,961,433) (16,224,547) {9.194,236) (6,554,715
Net Profit (Loss) attributable to members of Redflex
Holdings Limited 3,315,686  (3,736,886) {15,253,8568)  (2,638,521)
Batance at End of Year (16,645,747} (19,961,433} (24,448,094) (9,194,236}
Consclidated Entity Redflex Holdings Uimited
30~Jun-04 30-4un-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
3 3 3 &
NOTE 18 LEASE COMMITMENTS
Operating Leases
Operaling Lease Commitments Payable not later
than one year 1,401,327 1,504,732 625,264 625,264
Later than one year but no later than two years 1,228,882 1,501,843 625,264 625,264
Later than two years but not later than five years 1,936,771 2,691,306 1,042,106 625,264
Later than five years 0 0 0 1,042,106
’ 4,566,980 5,697,881 2,292,634 2,917,898
Finance Leases
Finance Leases Payable not later than one year 212,045 252,978 0 )
Later than ong year but no later than two years 232,808 0 0 0
Later than two years but not later than five yaars o] Q 0 v
Later than five vears 0 Q 0 0
444,923 252,978 0 0
Future Finance Charges 8572 11.872 4] G
Lease liability 436,351 241,006 0 0
Totat Lease Liability 444,923 252,978 0 0




NOTE 17 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
3 $ 5 $
Reconciliation of Profit {Loss) from ordinary
aclivities after tax, to net cash inflow from
operations
Net Profit/(Loss) after income Tax 3,315,686 (3,736,886} (15,253,858) (2,639,521}
Non Cash Flow ltems
Depreciation Expense 3,851,402 2,938,747 105,228 107,061
Amortisation of Intangibles 978,540 768,057 0 0
Amortisation of Goodwill 20,021 0 20,021
Provision for Employee Entitlements 322,443 (107,314} 6,678 169,557
Provision for dimunition in value of raceivables 0 0 15,484,038 0
Pravigion for Doubtful Debts 27.000 0 0 0
Provision for non-recovery of receivables (40,000} 2,008,000 (390,743) 1,600,000
Change in Operating Assats and Liabilities
Decreasef(increase) in Term Deposits {387,527) {810,599} 441,134  (1,026,134)
Decrease/(Increase) in Prepayments (26,450} 0 423,590 0
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables — Non current 265,511 240,788 0 (1,694,576)
Decrease/(Increase) In Receivables - current (2,741,614) {1,076,867) {200,302) (707,972}
Decreasef(increase) inventories (277.958) (4,800,125) 0 o]
Increase in Deferred Revenue 428,087 0 o 0
Increasef{Decrease) in Payables {175.,037) 511.324 22,669 {135,581)
Net Cash Inflow/(QutRow) from Operating Activities 5550004  (4,164,875) 650,355  (4,327,166)

NOTE 18 SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS

The Consolidated Entity has arranged Group superannuation plans whereby the employee and the employer contribute varying
amounts of superannuation, depending on an smployes's remuneration package. In other cases employess have nominated other
funds to which the Consolidated Entity contributes at the dirsction of the employse.

In addition, the Consolidated Entity had during the year ended 30 June 2004, a statutory responsibility to contribute 9% of an Australian
employee's salary, which is also paid to a number of funds as directed by each empioyee.

All of the economic entities' responsibilities in respect to superannuation commitments relating to the year ended 30 June 2004 have
been discharged. All relevant superannuation funds are Accumulation Funds and accordingly there is no unfunded liability as at this
date.

NOTE 19 DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES

The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors’ is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for
the directors, the chief executive officer and the executive team. The Remuneration Committee assess the appropriateness of the
nature and amount of emolumenis of such officers on a periodic basis by referancs to relevant employment market conditions with the
overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and executive team.

To assist in achieving these objectives, the Remuneration Committes links the nature and amount of executive directors and officers’
emoluments to the Company's and divisional financial and operational performances.

Emoluments of Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited

Primary Post amploymant Equity Total
Emoluments Base Fee Bonus Other Superannuation Options $
$ $ $ $

Specified Directors

Chris Cooper V] 0 3,000 0 0 3,000
Robin Debernardi a a 3,000 0 0 3,000
Peter Lewinsky 28,000 8} 0 2,520 Q 30,520
Grzham Davie 160,810 286,306 0 14,474 0 201,590
Bruce Higgins 318,702 79,675 86,957 0 429,631 914,965

Total_ remuneration for
spacified directors 507.512 105,981 92,957 16,004 429,631 1,153,075




Prier to his appointments as a direcfor on 16 October 2003, Mr Lewinsky was retained as a corporats advisory consultant and received
fees of $14,000 for services provided to that date,

Emoluments of the five most highly paid executive officers of the Company and the Consolidated Entity,

The Directors have determined the officers of the Company to be the key managers of the business units and the Chief Financial
Officer.

Primary Post Equity Total
Employmaont
Emoluments Position Base Salary Cash Bonus Superannuation Options $
$ $ $ $
Specified Executives
Aaron Rosanberg Vice President Sales & 208,358 43,458 6,547 84,138 343,502
Marketing- Radflex Traffic
Systems Inc
Karen Finley Vice President 201,413 11,228 5,845 84,138 302,624
Operations- Redflex
Traffic Systems Inc
Ricardo Fiusco General Manager — 150,229 33,000 13,524 84,138 280,888
Australia Redflex Traffic
Systems
Ron Johnson Chief Financial Officer 152,680 0 13,740 84,138 250,538
Peter Harrison General Manager — 130,000 0 10,835 84,138 225,073
Redfiex Communications
Systems
Total remuneration for 843,660 87,687 50,588 420,680 1,402,625

spocified executives

In accordance with the existing Employee Option Plan, Redflex Holdings Limited has taken a decislon to ssue Options over the ordinary
shares of Redflex Holdings Limited to certain execufives of group entilies. The Options are issued for nil consideration, and granted in
accordance with performance guidelines established by the Diractors of the holding Company.

Options of spacified Directors and specified Exacutives

Number of Exercised Granted Expired Number of Number of
Options at Opttons at end of Options vasted
beginning of period as at 30 June
period 20048

{Exercisable)
Specified Directors

Grahem Davle 20,000 {20,000 0 0 0 0
Chris Cooper Y 0 0 0 0 0
Robin Debernardi ¢ 0 0 0 0 0
Pater Lowinsky 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bruce Higgins 0 0 1,800,000 Q 1,800,000 800,000
Specified Executives
Aaron Rosenberg Y 0 405,000 0 405,000 135,000
Karen Finley 0 405,000 0 405,060 135,000
Ricardo Fiusco 0 405,000 0 405,000 135,000
Ron Johnson ' 40,000 0 405,000 0 445,000 135,000
Pater Harrison 20,000 0 405,000 0 425,000 135,000

The Options ware issued in accordance with the existing Redfiex Employss Option Plan on the following terms:

{a) One third of the Options vesfed on 1 February 2004;

{b} One third of the Options will vest on 1 February 2005;

{c) One third of the Options will vest on 1 February 20086;

(d) Options can not be exercised until after the vesting date.

{e} The Opfions expire after 5 years;

() The RDFAR Options are at an exercise price of $0.50

{g) The RDFAS Options are at a nominal exercise price of $0.58 and increasing at the rate of 3% per annum (compounding) unfil
the time of exercise.

(h) The ROFAT Options are at an exercise price of $2.06 compounding at the rate of increase in the All Ordinaries index until
sxercised.

iy Options that have not vested cannot be exercised after termination of employment.

The Options granted to Mr Bruce Higgins were allocated prior to his appointment as a Director.



Shareholdings of specifiad Directors and specifiad Executives

Shares held in Ordinary Granted as On exercise of Ordinary shares at 30
Redfiex Holdings shares at 1 July remuneration Options, private June 2004
Limited 2003 placement, Share

Purchase Plan and

on markat

Specified Directors
Chiris Coopet 360,676 4] 386,404 747,080
Robin Debernardi 2,686,393 ¢ 537,880 3,224,373
Graham Davie 1,054,564 0 32,206 1,088,770
Peter Lowinsky a 0 41,800 41,800
Bruce Higgins 0 0 d 0
Total 4,101,633 0 998,360 5,100,023
Specified Executives
Aaron Rosenberg 0 0 ] 0
Karen Finley 6,463 0 0 8,463
Ricardo Fiuseo 1) ] o] 0
Ron Johnson 48,385 0 11.800 60,185
Peter Harrisan 6,770 0 5,900 12,670
Total 63,618 0 17,700 81,318

All of the variations in equities during the year endad 30 June 2004 related to equities bought under the Share Purchase Plan during
November 2003, the Private Placement for which consent was received at the 2003 Annual General Meeting, the issue of employese
Options, and the exercise of listed Options expiring on 31 December 2003,

NOTE 20 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

tndemaity Guarantees 30-dun-04 30-Jun-03
A bank has issued Indemnity Guarantees against which Letters of Set Off are in place: 70,600 70,000
Banks have issued other Indemnity Guarantees in respect of rental deposits and bid bonds: 1,239,898 542,450

Structured Equity Funding for Visible Voica Unit Trust

Redflex Holdings Limited (Redflex) entered info a licensing arrangement with an investment partnerghip in June 2000 which provided,
amongst other things:

1. A one-off four year license fee paid to Redflex of §10 million whereby the partnership is licensed certain rights over the Visible
Voice software. This amount was held on deposit te secure financiers fo the Syndicate and Redflex’s obligations per (4) below.

2. Payments of $2.6 million by the parfnership to Redfiex fo commercialise Visible Voice during the years ended 30 June 2000 and
30 June 2001; and

3. Rovyally payments by Redflex over the ferm of the license of a minimum of §375,000, and up to 12% of gross sales applicable to
certain geagraphical regions;

4. An obligation in the form of a put option for Redflex to subscribe for equity in the parinership, for an amount of no more than the
proceeds of (1) above

Ths cash proceeds of $10 million referred 1o in (1) above and accrued interest has not been booked as income or as an asset in the
books of Redflex as a corresponding liabliity existed for the put option referred to in {4) above. These amounts were offset as part of
the windup proceedings in July 2004,

In relation fo the above, contingent liabilities exist in the form of any claims that may be substantiated by the parinership in
circumstances where Redflex is in breach of the agreemends entered into. The Company has been advised by the manager of the
partnership, that the Australian Taxation Office has issued amended assessmants, to each partner, which disallow the deductions
claimed by each partner. At this stage, the Company understards that investors have objected 1o the ATO's revised assessments.

The parfnership and the transaction are in the process of being wound up in accordance with the ransaction agreements. Part of the
process established at the time of the transaction gives the partners the option o dispose of thair interest in Visible Voice by way of the
issue of an Exit Notice in accordance with transaction documents.

The Exit Price is to be calculated in accordance with the terms of the transaction agreements, and may bs paid in shares in Redflex
Holdings Limited or cash, at the sole option of Redfiex. The Company has received an Exit Notice and a calculation by the Parinership
of the Exit Price due to the partners.

The Exit Price proposed by the Partners is disputed by Redflex on the basis that it has not been properly calculated in accordance with
the terms of the fransaction documentation. The Partnership has calcuiated the Exit Price as approximately $5.2 million, which wauld
equate to the issue of 2,102,175 shares in Redflex Holdings Limited {or approximately 2.5% of the issued capital).



Redflex, having regard to all provisions relating to this calculation set out in the transaction documerits, and having sought legal advice
in this regard, is of the opinion that the Exit Price is approximately $25,000 or 11,658 shares.

The Company has sought professional advice on the implications of the Partnership and the ATO's actions, and the Directors advise
that at this stage they do not belisva that the Issus of the revised assessments by the ATO, or the Exit Notice issued by the
Partnership, have given rise to any liability of the Company under the transaction.

NOTE 21 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENTS

(a} Primary- Corporate  Communications Traffic 30-Jun04 30-Jun-03
Business Segmants Total Total
Revenus from customers outside $(000) $(000) $(000) $(000) $(009)

the Consolidated Entity
Revenue from sale of goods &

sarvices ) 0 8,473 7,334 16,807 12,999
Reverue from fee for service

contracts 0 0 47,263 17,253 10.501
interest revenue 80 0 0 80 17
Other 0 172 0 172 0
Total segment revenue 80 8,645 24,587 33,312 23,517
Consolidated operating profit before

tax (1,444) (946) 5,705 3,315 (3,738
Segment assets 2,018 11,353 45,799 59,168 44,768
Segment Lisbilities 195 758 9,031 9,984 8,125

Other segment Information
Acquisition of property plant &

equipment 240 401 15,805 16,448 8,587
Depreciation 39 346 3427 3.812 2,938
Amortisation 20 554 423 a7 768
{b) Secondary- Australia USA Other 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
Geographical Segments Total Total
$(000) $(000) $(000) $(000) $(000)
Reveanue from sale of goods & 5480 8,605 1,722 15,807 12,999
services
Revenue- fee for service contracts 0 17,253 0 17,253 10,501
Tolal revenue 5480 25,858 1,722 33,080 23,500
Segment assets 19,9214 39,247 0 59,168 44,768
Acquisition of property piant & 736 15,710 . a 16,446 6,587

equipment & intangibles

The Consolidated Entity’s companies are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services they
provide, with each segment offering different preducts and servicing different markets.

Tha Traffic division operates within two key markets, the USA and Australia. The USA Traffic business is predominantly a Bulld own
operate ang maintain business providing fully outsourced traffic enforcement programs to cities and townships. The Australian and
International traffic business involves the sale of traffic enforcement products to those markets.

The Communications business involves the sale of a variety of communication based solutions fo world markets, often via USA based
prime contractors.

The Segmental sphit segregates the primary business units into revenue from recurring fee for service business ang revenue related 1o
the sale of goods and services. The geographical split recognises the counfries in which the work is transacted. The corporate
division represents the Group's Head Office which is based in Melbourne, Australia,




NOTE 22 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Net tangible asset backing per share

Earnings used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per
share

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares on issue used in
cafculation of basic earnings per share.
Effect of dilutive securities {Share Options)

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares on issue used In
calculation of diluted earnings per ghare.

NOTE 23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between related parfies are on normal
commercial terms and conditions unless ctherwise

stated. These fransactions refate to the day to day

activities between companies in the Group and the

following amounts represent the net movements in

loans during the year.

Provision of interest free unsecured loans to wholly
owned Subsidiaries

from related entities
to related entitlies

Consolidated Enfity

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03

$ $
4.36 conts (6.6 conts)
4.20 cents {6.6 cents)
49.1 cents 44.0 cents

3,315,686  (3,736,886)

76,014,688 56,250,530
3,173,044 0

79,187,732 56,250,530

Consplidated Entity
30-Jun-04 30-dun-03
$ $
0 0
0 0

The ultimate hotding Company is Redflex Holdings Limited

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $
6,398,884 6,665,173
65,211,692 54,001,828

During the year the Company maintainad a funding facility with Second Tee Pty Ltd. Mr Robin Debernardi and Mr Chris Cooper are
Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited and directars of Second Tee Pty Lid and have a financial interest in Second Tee Pty Ltd. In
October 2002 Redflex Haldings fimited borrowed AUD 3.3 million at an interest rate of 12% pa. The loan was repald In January 2003
from the proceeds of the equity raising. No formal facility exists with Second Tee Pty Lid; howeaver a charge over the asseis and
undertakings of the Company and certaln subsidiaries remains in the event the Company may want to reestablish a facility.

The Directors consider that the transaction was conducted on an arms length basis and on normal commercial terms.



NOTE 24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Floating Interest Rate

Non Interest bearing

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
3 & $ %
a) Interest Rate Risk
(i) Financial Assets
Cash 2,780,450 1,070,124 0 0
Recelvables —~ trade 0 0 7,620,996 4,950,266
Short Term deposlits 1,239,898 1,112,425 0 0
Recelvables — Other Corporations ‘ 0 0 556,716 645,221
Total Financial Assets 4,020,348 2,182,548 8,177,712 5,585,487

The weighted average interest rate relating to term deposits is 1%.
Floating Interest Rate

Non Interest bearing

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03

(ii} Financial Liabilities
Bank Borrowings 3,761,801 2,887,373 0 0
Leass Liabilities 444,923 252,978 0 0
Payables 0 0 4,698,463 4,429,511
Total Financial Liabilittes 4,206,724 2,940,351 4,699,463 4,429,511

The weighted average interest rate refating to bank borrowings is 3.1%

b} Net Fair Values Carrying amount per Statement of Aggregats nat fair value
Financial Position
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-4un-03
$ § L3 &
{i} Financial Assets
Cash 2,780,450 1,070,124 2,780,450 1,070,124
Receivables ~ Trade & Other 7,620,906 4,850,266 7,620,996 4,950,266
Receivables ~ Cther Corporations 556,718 645,221 556,716 645,221
Term deposits 1,239,898 1,112,425 1,239,898 1,412,425
Total Financial Assets 12,188,060 7,778,036 12,198,060 7.778,036
(i) Financial Liabilities
Bank Borrowings 3,761,801 2,887,373 3,761,801 2,687,373
Lease Liabilities 444,843 252,578 444,843 252,978
Payables 4,899,463 4,429,511 4,699,463 4,429,511
Totat Financlal Liabillties 8,906,207 7,369,862 8,806,207 7,369,862

¢) Credit Risk Exposure

« The Consolidated Entity's maximum exposures to credit tisk at balance dats in relation to each class of recognised financial

assets, is tha carrying amount of those assets as ingicated in the Statement of Financial Position.

s Redflex Holdings Limited, on behalf of the Communications business, has taken out Foreign Currency options pertaining to future
receivables arising from future milestones to be invoiced which are either known or can be reliably estimated and denominated in
USD. Should the AUD/USD be below the strike price the Options will be allowed to lapse and the more favourable rates taken on

the day.

+  Options totalling USD1.5 million with progressive expiry dates through to the end of FY2008 have bean taken out. Thesa will
ensure the USD recelvables will be converted at no worse than .71 cents {average) while allowing potentlal benafits to be realised

should currency movements be favourable.

«  Options totalling USD 812,000 with progressive expiry dates through fo the end of FY05 have also been taken out. These Options
will ensure the USD receivables will be converted at no worse than .73 cents while allowing potential benefiis fo be realised shouid

currency movemeants be tavourable down to a conversion rate of .64 cents (average).

. Redflex has also taken a forward cover position for USD 408,000 at a rate of .7122 against a USD receivable

NOTE 25 SUBSEQUENTY EVENTS

There were no significant events subseguent to year end and prior to the date of this report that have not been dealt with elsewhere in

this report.



NOTE 26 IMPACT OF ADOPTING AASE EQUIVALENTS TO IASB STANDARDS

Redflex Holdings Limitad has commencad transitioning its accounting policies and financial reporting from current Ausfralian standards
to Australian equivalents of infernational Financial reporting standards (IFRS). The Company has allocated internal resources and
engaged expert consultants to perform diagnoslics ard conduct impact assessments to isolate key areas that will be impacted by the
transition to IFRS. As the Company has a June 30 year end, pricrity has been given to considering the preparation of an opening
statement of financial position in accordance with AASE equivalents as at 1 July 2004. This wilt form the basis of accounting for
Australian equivalents of IFRS in the future, and is required when Redflex prepares its first fully IFRS compliant financial report for the
year ended 30 June 2006. Following are key areas where accounting poficies will change and may have an impact on the financial
report. At this stage the Company has not been able to reliably quantify the impacts on the financial report.

Classification of Financial Instruments

Under AASB 139 Financiaf Instruments: Recegnition and Measurement, financial instruments will be required to be classified into one of
five categories which will, in turn, determine the accounting treatment of the item. The classifications are

Loans and receivables — measured at cost, held to maturity

Loans and receivables — measured at amartised cost, held for frading

Loans and receivables — measured at fair value, with fair value changes charged to profit or loss

Loans and receivables — measured at fair value, with fair value changes taken to equity

Nan-frading liabilites — measured at amortised cost.

This will result in a change in the current accounting policy that does not classify financial instruments. Current measurement is at
amortised cost. The future financial effect of this change in accounting policy is not yet known as the classification and measurement
process has not yet been fully completed.

Hedge accounting

Under AASB139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, hedgss are able to be separatsly identified and documentsd in
accardance with the requirements of IAS 38. Accordingly, all gains and losses on the contracts will be recognized in the income
statement.

Goodwill

Under the Australian equivalent to IRFS3 Business Combinations, goodwill acquired upon the acquisition of the assets and business
operafions of Poltech and Locktronics (Sse Note ) will not ba amertised but subject to annual impairment testing. This will resultin a
change in the Group's current accounting policy which amortises geodwill over its useful life but not exceeding ten years. Under the
new policy, amortisation will no longer be charged, but goodwill will be written down to the extent it is impalred. Reliable estimation of
the future financial effects of this change in accounting policy is impracticable as the condifions under which impairment will be
assesssd are not yet known.

impafrment of assets

Under the Australian equivalent to 1AS36 Impairment of assets the recoverable amount of an asset Is determined as the higher of net
selling price and value in use. itis expected that the valus in use measurement will exceed net selling price. This will result in a change
in the group's current accounting policy which determines the recoverable amount of an asset on the basis of discounted cash flows,
Urdler the new policy it is possible that impairment of assets will be recognized sooner and that the amount of write-downs will be
greater. Reflable estimation of the future financial effects of this change in accounting policy is impracticable as the condifions under
which impairment will be assessed are not yet known.

Intangible assets

Under the Australian equivalent to JAS 38 Intangible Assets, costs incurred in the research phase of the development of an internally
gensrated intangible must be expensed. This will resultin a change in tha group’s current accounting policy which allows for the
capitalization of costs incurred in the research phase of an intemally generated intangible asset where future benefits are expected
beyond reasonable doubt. Under the new paticy, all research costs will be written off as incurred. Reliable estimation of the future
financial effects of this change in accounting policy cannot yet be identified; however an amount may bs required to be adjusted against
opening retained earnings for the amount that does not mast the recognition requirements unider IFRS.

Share based payments

Under AASB2Z Share based paymants, the Company wifl be required fo determine the falr value of Options Issued to employees as
remuneration and recogrize as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance. This statement is not limited to Options and
also extends to other forms of equity based remuneration. It applies to all share-based payments issued after 7 November 2002 which
have not vested as at 1 January 2005. Reliable estimation of the future financial effects of this change in accounting policy is
impracticable as the details of future equity based remuneration plans are unknown.

Income Taxes

Undet the Australian gquivalent fo 1AS 12 Income Taxes, the Company will be required to use a Balance sheet tiability method which
focuses on the tax effects of transactions and other events that effect amounts recognized in either the Statement of Financial
Performancs or a tax-based balance sheet. The change in accounting standard is expected o coincide with the utilization of carry
forward tax losses and the recognition of the tax effect on both timing differences relating to the diftering treatments used for book and
tax differences. The capital gains tax effect of asset revaluations arising from asset impairment reviews will be recognized. It is hot
expected that there will be any further material impact as a result of adoption of this standard.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Upon transition to the adoption of IFRS the Company has the option to reset the Foreign currency translation reserve 1o zero. At this
stage the Company believes it will elect to exercise this option. The reset will be offset against Retained Earnings on the Statement of
Financial Position.
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Independent audit report to members of Redflex Holdings Limited

Scope

The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial
performance, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the
directors’ declaration for Redflex Holdings Limited (the company) and the consolidated entity, for
the year ended 30 June 2004. The consolidated entity comprises both the company and the entities
it controlled during that year.

The directors of the company are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and
fair view of the financial position and performance of the company and the consolidated entity, and
that complies with Accounting Standards in Australia, in accordance with the Corporaiions Act
2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal
controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and
accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the
members of the company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards, in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of
professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that
all material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents
fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting
Standards in Australia, and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view
which is consistent with our understanding of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial
position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

. examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report, and

. assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide
assurance on internal controls.



Ef Ernst & YOUNG

[

We performed procedures 1o assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately
reflected in the financial report. These and our other procedures did not include consideration or

judgement of the appropriateness or reasonableness of the business plans or strategies adopted by
the directors and management of the company.

Independence
We are independent of the company, and have met the independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001,

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of Redflex Holdings Limited is in accordance with:
(a)  the Corporations Act 200!, including:
(1) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Redflex Holdings Limited and
the consolidated entity at 30 June 2004 and of their performance for the year ended
on that date; and

(if)  complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations
Regulations 2001, and
(b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

Er g f £ %ﬁu o

J

Ernst & Young

David Petersen

Pariner

Melbourne

Date: 28 September 2004




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ASX Additional Information

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange and not shown elsewhere in this report is as follows. This information
is current as at 23 Ssptember 2004. '

There wers 3,972 holders of fully paid Ordinary Shares. The voting rights attached to these shares are such that every member present
in person or represented by proxy or represeniative shall have one vote and on a poll every member present or by proxy or
representative shall have ons vote for evety share held.

The distribution schedule of holders of fully paid Ordinary Shares is:

Holding range No of Holders Units Percent
1 ~1000 665 437,767 0.53
1001 - 5000 1,668 4,643,382 5.68
5001 — 10000 725 5,453,289 6.56
10001 - 100000 834 21,231,392 2553
100001 - over 80 51,395,598 61.80

3,972 83,161,428 100.00

The names and percentage holding of the twenty largest holders of fully paid Ordinary Shares are:

Units Held at end Percent of

Rank Mame of period Issued Capital
1 INVIA CUSTODIAN PTY LIMITED<THIRTY FIVE A/IC> 4,579,811 5.51
2 INVESTACQO PTY LTD 3,716,584 4.47
3 WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED 3,637,194 4.37
4 MS CHENG MAN OY 3,525,636 424
5 INVIA CUSTODIAN PTY LIMITED<BLACK AJC> 2,995,100 3.60
6 NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 2,584,860 311
7 MR MELFORD HENRY RUSSELL ROBERTS 2,118,324 254
8 J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 2,084,002 2.51
9 VERTEX BIANCA NOMINEES PTY LTD 2,044,973 2.46
10 NELLSTAR PTYLTD 1,937,406 2.33
11 O'CONNOR HOLDINGS PTY LTD 1,603,519 193
12 CONINGSBY NOMINEES PTY LTD<SUPER FUND A/C> 1,437,857 1.73
13 ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED 908 686 1.08
14 MR GRAHAM WILLIAM DAVIE 806,677 1.09
15 SILVERLENE PTY LTD 790,147 0.5
16 BLUE JADE PTY LTD 730,371 0.88
17 DORION HOLDINGS PTY LTD 692,800 0.83
18 MERRILL LYNCH (AUSTRALIA) NOMINEES PTY LTD 666,280 0.80
19 MR SYDNEY HO 666,900 0.80

20 DPV NOMINEES PTY LTD<DALY FAMILY A/C> 665,352 0.80
Top 20 holders of Ordinary Fully Paid Shares 38,601,080 46.41

The names of substantial shareholders who have notified the Company in accordance with section 6§71B of the Corporations Act 2001
are: :
Thorney Holdings Pty Ltd — 6,860,991 shares

OPTION HOLDER INFORMATION

At 23 September 2004 there were no quoted Options over Ordinary Shares.

The register of securities is kept by Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd at Yarra Falls, 452 Johnston Street, Abbotsford, Victoria
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The Directors are pleased to present the Annual
Report for the financial year ended 30 June
2004. The year has shown substantial increase in
revenues and a significant turnaround in profit
from the previous year.

REVENUE ($AUD)

2002/03 -2003/04

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

EBITDA (SAUD)

$0aM

2

2002/03 2003/04

USA INSTALLED CAMERA BASE
123% INCREASE

JUNE 03 JUNE 04

USA TRAFFIC PERFORMANCE

PAGE 2

USA CONTRACTED CITIES
83% INCREASE

JUNE 03 JUNE 04

NET PROFIT (5AUD)

$o

$B7

2002/03 2003/04

USA CONTRACTED STATES

JUNE 03 JUNE 04
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s Communications division, conversely,
continues to find trading conditions difficult.
Whilst a substantial operating foss was incurred
some comfort can be taken from the fact that
the division operated close to break even in the

half of the financial year and that the
hook for the 2004/2005 financial year is in
ificantly better shape than was the case 12
months ago. The division, however, continues
to be given very close attention Dy your Board.

During the 2003/2004 financial year the Board
was pleased to weicome Mr. Bruce Higgins into
its ranks as an Executive Director in recognition
of his achievements in the Traffic division. M.
Higgins has been head of the Traffic division for
the last three years with particular focus on the
USA operation where he has now been based
for the last year and a half.

We take this opportunity to thank the
company’s shareholders for their long standing
foyal support. Your Board is delighted that
shareholders have been rewarded over the

last two years with a substantial increase in the
value of their shares.

Most importantly, we also wish to put on record
our thanks for the loyalty and dedicated hard
work provided by the company’s staff. They

ir achievements.

Christopher Cooper

hairman
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HIGHLIGHTS
Major highlights are:

Profitable Performance

+ A profit of $3.3 million which represents
a $7.0 million turnaround from a loss of
$3.7 million for the previous year. Profit for
the second half was $2.5 million, compared
with the first half profit of $0.8 million.

* Revenue increased by over 41% from $23.5
million to $33.3 million.

« Earnings Before Interest Taxation
Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA),
our major index of operating performance,
was also significantly higher at $8.5 million,
up from $0.1 million for the prior year.

Funding

» Strong support from shareholders and
new investors with $13.9 million equity
raised through a Share Purchase
Plan, placements and exercise of options.

* Arevolving debt facility with USA based
Harris Savings and Trust Bank for USD 13.0

million (AUD 18.4 million) was put in place in

August 2004, to fund continued growth in
the traffic business in the USA.

» QOperating cash flow improved from the
previous financial year by $8.7 mitlion to
$5.6 million.

Traffic

Revenues in the USA have continued their
strong growth as new systems have been
rolled out progressively at an increasing
rate. Recurring revenue also continues to
grow with each camera system installed,
with contracts typically being for a five year
period with potential extensions.

The installed base in the USA at the end of
June 2004 was on target at 301 systems.
This is an increase of 123% over the 135
installed systems at the end of June the
previous year.

New contracts were signed with 28 cities
and towns in the USA, with renewals and
extensicons in a further 7 cities or towns since
1 July 2003 indicating a very strong current
order book.

The rollout capacity has been expanded
further to support sustainable average
implementation rates in excess of 17 per
month for the 2004/05 financial year.

Four new major traffic photo-enforcement
contracts in Australia demonstrate Redflex’
increasing success in the market.

Completion of the acquisition of the assets
of competiter Poltech Limited and its
subsidiary Locktronic Pty Ltd, and initial
sales of the LaserCam product acquired
from Poltech to the UK and South Africa.

Communications
* Four new Communications contracts have

been signed direct with the US Department
of Defense — two Army, one Navy and one
AirForce.

A major contract has been won with the
US Air Force through our US based partner
Innovative Solutions Corporation. This
contract is expected to result in up to

AUD 17 million revenue over five years.

Further significant contracts for defence
communications systems have been won
with other customers in Australia and
overseas,

An R&D START Grant of $2.8 million

over two and a half years was awarded

by the Australian Government to develop the
Switchplus® Gen 3 product line.

PAGE 5
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lower operating expense on an average activity
basis. Based on available data, we assess
our operations efficiency to be the best in the
industry on a cost per citation basis.

New features have been introduced into our
photo enforcement products to ensure we
remain at the forefront of the industry.

Non USA based Traffic business

The non-USA based Traffic business includes
Australia, South Africa, United Kingdom,
Europe and the Middle East.

Market share in Australia has continued to
strengthen, with Redflex the number one digital
enforcement company in the market.

The Australian based Traffic business has
delivered impressive performance with
contracts signed in a number of jurisdictions,
and development of key opportunities. New
majar contracts announced were: The West
Australian back office development; a point-
to-point speed system for the Roads and
Traffic Authority in NSW; sales of camera
systems, both fixed and the mobile LaserCam
to South Africa; sales of the LaserCam
product to customers in the UK; maintenance
arrangements in NSW; and a contract to
supply speed cameras to Tasmania. Redflex
operates in a competitive environment and has
demonstrated its superior capabilities to this
range of customers.

Redflex received an order for new Point-to-Paint
Speed Enforcement Systems for trial with the
Roads and Traffic Authority throughout New
South Wales and we have opened an office

in New South Wales to provide (ocal support
services in this growing market.

The order for the Western Australian Police
notice processing system back-office was

won during the year. The first phase has been
delivered and is undergoing customer testing.
Using the latest technolagies, the system will
be one of the largest photo enforcement notice
pracessing centres in the world.

During the year, Redflex acquired the assets
and intellectual property of its largest local

competitor, Poltech International Limited and its
subsidiary Locktronic Pty Ltd. The integration
of the Poltech products, selected staff, and
intellectual property has been completed and
overall results have exceeded expectations.
Additional maintenance contracts, upgrades
and support services have been contracted
and delivered for Poltech cameras in New
South Wales and Tasmania. Sales of Lasercam
systems to South Africa have also been

made. We are pleased with the progress in
sales of systems related to the former Poltech
intellectual property.

The Redflex presence in Europe continues to
grow, with sales of the Lasercam Mobile Speed
Enfarcement Camera in the UK. Eight systems
have been sold to five jurisdictions in the United
Kingdom. An office has been established in
the United Kingdom with the appointments of
a Director of Sales and technical staff. Redflex
has also received an order for a pilot camera
system in Greece for fixed speed photo
enforcement to be installed after the Olympics.
We are selectively looking for opportunities to
apply our technology and business models to
the European market.

The research and development program for
the Traffic business has continued with new
projects committed to maintain our leadership
with existing products and to develop new
products. Expenditure on R&D will continue
through the 2004/05 financial year to meet
identified needs for new products that meet our
return on investment criteria.

Manufacturing of photo enforcement

systems has increased to meet the increased
requirements for government clients and to
support the higher instaliation schedule for USA
systems. Our capacity to manufacture photo
enforcement systems meets our requirements.
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BOARD CHANGES

The Board has been expanded through this
financial year.

in October 2003 Peter Lewinsky was invited to
join the Board as a Non Executive Director and
he has brought with him a wealth of experience
in finance, banking, governance and public and
private Boards. His appointment was ratified at
the 2003 Annual General Meeting.

In February 2004, Bruce Higgins the President
and Chief Executive Officer of Redflex Traffic
Systems joined the Board.

Continuing Directors are Christopher Cooper,
chairman, Robin Debernardi, Non Executive
Director and Graham Davie, Chief Executive
Officer.

INVESTOR COMMUNICATIONS

The company has focused on providing

timely information to the market through: our
ASX announcements; our subscription email
service, which ensure that releases are sent

to all participating parties; our public briefings
and private briefings for broking firms, analysts,
fund managers, other investors and the media;
and our web site at www.redflex.com.au which
provides a range of relevant information. In
line with company policy, information that

is provided at briefings is either already

in the public domain or is made available
concurrently with briefings.

Redflex has joined the eTree program, a
Computershare initiative with the environmental
agency Landcare Australia. elree gives an
environmental incentive to shareholders to
elect to receive shareholder comunications
electronically, thus reducing printing and
mailing costs and protecting the environment
through lower usage of printed material. For

every Redflex security holder who registers
their email address through the eTree secure
website, Landcare will receive up to $2 to
assist in reforesting the state where the security
holder resides. We encourage shareholders to
take advantage of the program and to register
your email address at www.eTree.com.au/
Redflex.

SHARE PRICE

It has been pleasing to see the successes

in the business reflected in the growth in the
share price over the year, with movement from
$0.58 on 30 June 2003 to $2.40 on 30 June
2004,

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Redflex has a history of significant investment
in Research and Development, and this has
continued for the 2003/04 financial year. Total
investment in R&D was approximately 6% of
revenue which is regarded as a reasonable
expenditure on R&D when technology is a key
element of maintaining our market position.

LITIGATION

Through the financial year a smaller competitor
in the USA, Nestor Inc, issued proceedings
against Redflex Traffic Systems Inc on two
separate occasions alleging infringement of
patents. We have received advice that the
claims are without merit and that there is no
infringement of the respective patents.

Early in the 2003/04 financial year, patent
litigation with Locktronic Pty Ltd, a subsidiary
of Poltech Limited, was settled, as reported in
last year's Annual report. This occurred prior
to Poltech and Locktronic being placed into
administration and the subsequent acguisition
by Redflex of key assets of those companies.

OUTLOOK

The Directors are confident that the year
ahead will be substantially mere profitable, in
particular as we see the anticipated ongoing
growth in the USA based Build-Own-Operate
business.

We have stated an expectation to deliver an
increase in the total instalied base to 400
camera systems in the USA for the first six
months, with in excess of 500 installed by

the end of the 2004/05 financial year. Based
on these plans for growth, the debt funding

in place with Harris Trust and Savings Bank
should enable the business to grow to the paoint
at which future growth will be fundable from
revenues.

Both the Australian based Traffic business and
the Communications business are expected t0
be profitable for the 2004/05 financial year.

| take this opportunity once again to thank all
involved in the company for their ongoing and
active support - shareholders, the investment
community and our professional advisers, and
particularly to all of our employees, who have
worked extremely hard to deliver the result for
the year, and to the Board for their involvement,
support and for driving for top levels of
performance in all areas of our business.

Graham Davie
Chief Executive Officer
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Directors’ Interests

The interest of each Director in the share capital of Redflex Holdings Limited, at the date of this Report, as contained in the Register of Directors’
Shareholding of the Company is:

Director Relevant Interest over Options over

Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
Chris Cooper 747,080 0
Robin Debernardi 3,224,373 0
Peter Lewinsky 41,800 0
Graham Davie 1,086,770 0
Bruce Higgins 0 1,800,000

Directors' interests in Options together with terms and conditions are set out in Notes 19 and 23.
Issue of Shares
During the year the Company issued the following shares:
1. 3,275,035 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of Options at a price of $1.10 per share fully paid.
. 7,944 184 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of private placement at a price of $0.8475 per share fully paid.
. 4,098,494 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of a Share Purchase Plan at a price of $0.8475 per share fully paid.

2

3

4, 100,000 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of unlisted employee Options at a price of $0.69 per share fully paid.
5. 30,000 Ordinary Shares'were issued by way of conversion of unlisted employee Options at a price of $0.5894 per share fully paid.
6

. 70,000 Ordinary Sharesiwere issued by way of conversion of unlisted employee Options at a price of $0.5909 per share fully paid.

Issue of Options
During the year ended 30 June 2004, the following Options were issued:

1. 1,800,000 Options over Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $0.50.

2. 2,655,000 Options over Crdinary Shares at an exercise price of $0.58 compounding at 3% p.a. until exercised.

3. 1,348,000 Options over Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $2.06 compounding at the rate of increase in the All Ordinaries Index until
exercised.

Expiration of Options

6,261,796 Options issued at an exercise price of $1.10 expired on 31 December 2003. Of these Options 3,275,035 were exercised. The remaining
Options expired.

Unissued shares

As at 30 June 2004 and at the date of this report there were 6,323,000 unissued ordinary shares under Options. Refer to Note 14 for further details of the
Options outstanding.

30 June 2004 30 June 2003
Basic Earnings per Share 4.36 cents (6.6 cents)
Diluted Earnings per Share 4.20 cents (6.6 cents)
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares used in calculation of Earnings per Share 76,014,688 56,250,530
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares used in calculation of diluted Earnings per 79,187,732 56,250,530
Share
Net tangible asset backing per ordinary security 49.1 cents 44.0 cents
Dividends

The Company did not propose or pay any dividends in the year ended 30 June 2004 (2003 - Nil).

Summarised operating results are as follows:

The Company showed revenue from operating activities of $33,060,064 which was up 40.7% on the previous financial year (2003 - $23,499 913).
The increase in revenue was due to:

* Anincrease in the number of revenue generating camera installations within our USA Build Own Operate and Maintain business from 135 at 30 June
2003 to 301 at 30 June 2004.

* The increase was offset in part by the move in the AUD/USD exchange rate by approximately 6% reducing the reported revenue from the growing USA
Traffic business and Communication division revenues within the USA due to translation effects.

The consolidated operating profit of the Consclidated Entity for the year ended 30 June 2004 after income tax of $nil was $3,315,686 (2003 - loss of
$3,736,886).

The operating loss of Redflex Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 June 2004 after income tax of $nil was $15,253,858 (2003 - loss of $2,639,521).
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Principal Activities

During the year, the principal activities of entities within the Consolidated Entity were;

« Management and operation of Build, Own, Operate and Maintain Traffic enforcement business for the USA market; commercialisation of the Redflex
Traffic Image Processing Software and associated traffic violation management systems and hardware world-wide.

+ Commercialisation and development of technology associated with voice and data digital switching and related communications systems.

Operating results by business and geographical segments are as foliows:

(a) Business Segments Corporate  Communications Traffic 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
Total Total

$(000) $(000) $(000) $(000) $(000)

Revenue from sale of goods & services 8,473 7,334 15,807 12,999
Revenue from fee for service contracts 0 17,253 17,253 10,501
Total revenue from operating activities 8,473 24,587 33,060 23,500
Consolidated operating profit before tax (1,444) (9486) 5,705 3,315 (3.736)
Total assets 2,016 11,353 45,799 59,168 44,768
(b) Geographical segments Australia USA Other 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
Total Total

$(000) $(000) $(000) $(000) $(000)

Revenue from sale of goods & services 5480 8,605 1,722 15,807 12,999
Revenue from fee for service ¢oniracts 0 17,253 0 17,253 10,501
Total revenue from operating activities 5,480 25,858 1,722 33,060 23,500
Total assets 18,921 39,247 0 59,168 44 768

Corporate Information

Redflex Holdings Limited is a company limited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Redflex Holdings Limited has prepared a
consolidated financial report incorporating the entities that it controlled during the year and as detailed in Note 8 to the accounts. The Consolidated Entity
employed 195 employees as at 30 June 2004 (2003: 150 employees).

Redflex Traffic Systems USA business

Redflex has maintained and extended its position as the largest provider of digital red light photo enforcement services in North America, with contracts
in 53 cities and towns across eleven states. Redflex has led the market in the number of red light photo enforcement systems installed over a 12-month
period and based on new contracts signed, is the leading vendor by market share over the past 12 months.

The installation of the 301st system was anncunced on 15th July, representing a growth rate of 123% in installed systems, from the 135 systems installed
at 1 July 2003. We have a strong portfolio of signed contracts with USA municipalities that support continued installation at rates in excess of 17 systems
per month.

During the year we achieved a record in order intake with 26 cities contracting with Redflex for new photo enforcement programs. This is particularly
pleasing as our strategy to exiend our reach into the USA market with our geographic presence is on track and we have demonstrated our ability to grow
within markets where our competitors have existing business. We also executed changes or renewals with seven existing clients and achieved a 100%
retention of existing clients.

The pipeline of selections, bids and prospects is strong, and the averall market environment both with prospective clients and the general public strongly
supports our business mode! and value proposition. New states within the USA have legislative initiatives in progress that expand our market opportunity.

Back office processing operations are meeting the processing requirements created by the strong installation program and growth in new cities. The
improved efficiency of our software systems and processes has been improved to enable a lower operating expense on an average activity basis. We
assess our operations efficiency to be the best in the industry on a cost per citation basis, based on the data available.

Redflex Traffic Systems Non USA based business
Non-USA based business includes Australia, South Africa, Unted Kingdom, Europe and the Middle East.

Market share in Australia has continued to strengthen, with Redflex the number one digital enforcement company in the market.

The Australia based Traffic business has also delivered impressive performance with contracts signed in a number of jurisdictions, and development of
key opportunities. Major new contracts announced were: The West Australian Back Office Development, a point-to-point speed system for the Roads and
Traffic Authority in NSW, sales of camera systems, both fixed and the mobile LaserCam to South Africa, sales of the LaserCam product to customers in the
UK, maintenance arrangements in NSW, and a contract to supply speed cameras to Tasmania. The Company operates in a competitive environment and
has demonstrated its superior capabilities to this range of customers.

During this period, Redflex acquired the assets and intellectual property of its largest local competitor, Poltech International Limited and its subsidiary
Locktronic Pty Ltd. The integration of the Poltech products, selected staff and intellectual property has been completed and the benefits have exceeded
expectations. Additional maintenance contracts, upgrades and support services have been contracted for and delivered for Poltech cameras in NSW and
Tasmania. Sales of four Lasercam systems to South Africa have been made.
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The Redflex presence inlEurope continues to grow, with sales of the Lasercam Mobile Speed Enforcement Camera in the UK. An office has been
established in the United Kingdom with the appointment of a Director of Sales and technical staff. Redflex has also received an order for a pilot camera
system in Greece for fixed speed photo enforcement to e installed after the Olympics. Within Europe we are selectively looking for opportunities to apply
our technology and business models to this market.

The research and development program for the Traffic business has continued with new projects committed to maintain our leadership with existing
products and development of new products. Expenditure on R&D will continue through the 2004/05 financial year to meet identified needs for new
products that meet our return on investment criteria.

Manufacturing capacity of photo enforcement systems has increased to meet the increased demand for government clients and to support the higher
installation schedule for USA systems. Our capacity to manufacture photo enforcement systems meets our requirements.

Redflex Communications Systems

The Communications Division, after a poor result in the first half (an operating loss of $869,000), has shown significant improvement in the second half
and recorded an operating loss of $77,000 for that period. This is below expectations however a profit is projected for the 2004/05 financial year and a
significant amount of the revenues necessary to achieve the result are committed.

Over the year progress was made in delivering complex communications systems to key clients, including the Royal Australian Air Force. Lockheed Martin,
Tenix Defence Systems and the US Department of Defense.

The following contracts have been signed with key customers since July 2003.

A secure volice conferencing system and a secure video conferencing facility for the US Army, a deployable communications system was delivered to the
US Navy, and communications systems were provided and installed for the US Air Force in the UK.

A major contract has been won in conjunction with Innovative Solutions in the USA to provide communications for the US Air Force as part of the Battlefield
Control System — Maobile. This contract is expected to result in revenues of up to $17 million over the next 5 years.

An Australian Government START grant of $2.8 million for Research and Development was awarded to Redflex Communications to assist with the
development of the next generation Switchplus® Gen3 product over a period of two and a half years.

Significant changes in'the state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Redflex Group not otherwise dealt with in this report

Likely developments and expected results

The most significant growth for the ensuing financiai year is expected within the Traffic Division. The Company has set internal installation rates for
cameras within the USA which can be met predominantly from existing contracts and selections. This growth will be funded from the cash generated from
operations together with an appropriate debt funding already in piace.

After balance date events
There were no after balance date events of significance not otherwise dealt with in this report.

Environmental Regulation and Performance
The Directors are not aware of any breaches of environmental legislation affecting the industry in which the Group operates.

Remuneration Policy
A Remuneration Committee, currently comprising all members of the Board, has been formed to review future remuneration arrangements for the Directors

and Executive team. The Chief Executive Officer’'s remuneration is determined by the Board.

Emoluments of Directors of Redflex Heldings Limited

Base Fee Bonus Superannuation & Options Total
Other

3 $ $ $ $

Chris Cooper 0 0 3,000 0 3,000
Robin Debernardi 0 0 3.000 0 3,000
Peter Lewinsky 28,000 0 2,520 0 30,520
Graham Davie 160,810 26,306 14,474 0 201,590
Bruce Higgins 318,702 79,675 86,957 429,631 914,965

Prior {0 his appointment as a Director on 16 October 2003, Mr. Lewinsky was retained as a corporate advisory consultant and received fees of $14.000 for
services provided to that date.
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Emoluments of the five most highly paid Executive officers of the Company and the Consolidated Entity.
The Directors have determined the officers of the Company to be the key managers of the business units and the Chief Financial Officer.

Emoluments Base Salary Bonus Superannuation & Options Total
Other
$ $ $ $ $

Aaron Rosenberg  Vice President Sales &
Marketing- Redflex Traffic

Systems Inc 209,358 43,459 6,547 84,138 343,502
Karen Finley Vice President Operations-

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc 201,413 11,228 5,845 84,138 302,624
Ricardo Fiusco General Manager - Australia

Redflex Traffic Systems 150,229 33,000 13,521 84,138 280,888
Ron Johnson Chief Financial Officer 152,660 0 . 13,740 84,138 250,538
Peter Harrison General Manager — Redflex

Communications Systems 130,000 6] 10,935 84,138 225,073

The Company uses the fair value measurement provisions of AASB 1046 “Director and Executive Disclosures for Disclosing Entities” and the pending
AASB 2 “Share-based payment” prospectively for all Options granted to Directors and relevant Executives, which have not vested as at 1 July 2003. The
fair value of such grants is being amortised and disclosed as part of Director and Executive emoluments on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
No adjustments have been made or will be made to reverse amounts that never vest (ie forfeitures).

From 1 July 2003, Options granted as part of Director and Executive emoluments have been independently valued using a Black-Scholes option pricing
madel, which takes account of factors including the option exercise price, the current level and volatility of the underlying share price, the risk-free interest
rate, expected dividends on the underlying share, current market price of the underlying share and the expected life of the option.

Fair Values of Options

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of the grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing mode! with the following weighted average
assumptions used for grants made on 30 June 2004, 2003 and 2002. The valuation of the Options was performed independently by Pitcher Pariners.

Biack-Scholes option formula RDFAR RDFAS RDFAT
Share Price 0.8900 0.8900 2.2200
Exercise price 0.5000 0.5859 2.0800
Expected volatility 33% 33% 33%
Risk-free interest rate 521% 521% 552%
Expected life of option 5 years 5 years

The dividend vield reflects the assumption that no dividend has been previously paid nor will be paid until FY08. The expected life of the option is the
maximum period allowable and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The resulting weighted average fair values per option for those Options vesting after 1 July 2003 are:

RDFAR RDFAS RDFAT TOTAL
Number of Options 1,800,000 2,655,000 1,348,000 5,803,000
Weighted average fair value
30 June 2004 429,631 551,573 19,437 1,000,641
30 June 2005 112,144 227,724 242,037 581,905
30 June 2006 14,519 81,959 100,494 176,972
30 June 2007 0 0 35999 35,999
556,294 841,256 387,967 1,795,517

Indemnification of Officers and Auditors

The Company has agreed to indemnify the following current Directors of the Company: Christopher Cooper, Robin Debernardi, Peter Lewinsky, Graham
Davie, Bruce Higgins and the Company Secretary and all Executive officers of the Company and of any related body corporate, against any liability that
may arise from their position within the Company. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability indemnified.

Redflex Holdings Limited, being the ultimate parent entity, paid premiums in respect of Directors and Officers liability insurance during the financial year.
The contract of insurance does not include details of premiums paid in respect of individual officers of the Company and prohibits disclosure of the
amount of the premium paid.

The Company has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify any auditor of the Company, or any
related entity, against a liability incurred in their capacity as an auditor.
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Directors’ Meetings
Directors’ meetings held and attended during the year ended 30 June 2004, and up to the date of this report were:

No of Directors Meetings held  Number of Directors  Nomination Audit Remuneration

while in office Meetings attended Committee Committee Committee

Number of Meetings Held 2 2 2

Graham Davie 21 21 2 2

Robin Deberardi 21 21 2 2 2

Christopher Cooper 21 20 2 2 2
Peter Lewinsky 15 15
Bruce Higgins 8 8

Ethical Standards

The Consolidated Entity has in place a Code of Conduct that identifies the appropriate professional conduct for its dealings with sharehalders,
management, employees and other persons. The seif-regulatory measures contained within this code are important in increasing the awareness of
shareholders, and others who deal with the Company, that Redflex Holdings Limited takes responsibility for its own conduct so that they may feel confident
as to the integrity of the Company and its decision making processes.

This Code of Conduct has been implemented by the Board of Directors, who review compliance with the code and review its contents on an ongoing
basis.

The Code currently includes standards that cover respect for the law, integrity in all workplace and external dealings, diligence and quality and equal
opportunity. Other standards and policies cover in more detail the provision of a safe and healthy workplace. fair employment practices and share trading
by employees and Directors.

Identifying and managing business risks

The Board regularly monitors the operational and financial performance of the Company and Consolidated Entity against budget and other key
performance measures. The Board also reviews and receives advice on areas of operational and financial risks. Appropriate risk management strategies
are developed to mitigate all significant identified risks of the business.

Tax Consolidation )

For the purposes of income taxation, the Directars of Redflex Holdings Limited and its 100% Australian owned subsidiaries intend to form a tax
consolidated group effective from 1 July 2003. Members of the group will enter into a tax sharing arrangement in order to allocate income tax expense
to the wholly-owned subsidiaries on a pro-rata basis. In addition the agreement will provide for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities
should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations.

Corporate Governance
In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited suppart and have
adhered to the principles of corporate governance. Redflex’s corporate governance statement is contained in the following section of this annual report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Graham Davie
Director
Melbourne, 28 September 2004
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited, | state that:
In the opinion of the Directors:
(@) the financial statements and notes of the Company and of the consclidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

() giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2004 and of their performance for the year
ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(0} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

On behalf of the Board

U ern

Graham Davie
Director
Melbourne, 28 September 2004
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The Board of Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited is responsible for the corporate governance of the Consolidated Entity. The Board guides and monitors
the business and affairs of Redflex Holdings Limited on behalf of the sharehalders by whom they are elected and to whom they are accountable.

The format of the Corporate Governance statement has changed in comparison to the previous year due to the introduction of the Australian Stock
Exchange Corporate Governance Council’s “Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recormendations”. In accordance with the
Council's recommendations, the Corporate Governance Statement must now contain certain specific information and must disclose the extent to which the
Company has followed the guidelines during the period. Where a recommendation has not been followed, that fact must be disclosed. together with the
reasons for the departure. The principles are:

Lay solid foundations for management and oversight.

Structure the Board to add value.

Promote ethical and responsible decision making.

Safeguard integrity in financial reporting.

Make timely and balanced disclosure.

1

2

3

4

5

6. Respect the rights of shareholders.
7. Recognise and manage risk.

8. Encourage enhanced performance.
9. Remunerate fairly and respansibly.
1

0. Recognise the legitimate interests of stakeholders.

To ensure the Board is well equipped to discharge its responsibilities, it has established guidelines for the operation of the Board. In accordance with ASX
Listing Rule 4.10.3, the Directors provide hereunder the main corporate governance practices of the Consolidated Entity:

Composition of the Board
The composition of the Board is determined in accordance with the following principles and guidelines:

 the Board shall comprise at least three Directors and should always maintain a majority of Non Executive Directors
« the Chairman should be a Non Executive Director
= the Board shall comprise Directors with an appropriate range of gualifications and experience; and

* the Board shall meet at least monthly and follow meeting guidelines to ensure all necessary information is available to participate in an
informed discussion of dll agenda items.

The Directors in office at the date of this report are:
Mr. Chris Cooper Chairman, Non Executive Director
Mr. Robin Debernardi ~ Non Executive Director

Mr. Peter Lewinsky Non Executive Director
Mr. Graham Davie Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Bruce Higgins President and Chief Executive Officer, Redflex Traffic Systems Inc.

Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited are considered to be independent when they are independent of management and free from any business or
other relationship that could materially interfere with — or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with — the exercise of their unfettered and
independent judgment.

In the context of Director independence, “materiality” is considered from both the Company and individual Director perspective. The determination of
materiality requires consideration of both guantitative and qualitative elements. An item is presumed to be quantitatively immaterial if it is equal to or less
than 5% of the appropriate base amount. It is presumed to be material (unless there is qualitative evidence to the contrary) if it is equal to or greater than
10% of the appropriate base amount. Qualitative factors considered include whether a relationship is strategically important, the competitive landscape.
the nature of the relationship and the contractual or other arrangements governing it and other factors which point to the actual ability of the Director in
question to shape the direction of the Company’s loyalty.

In accardance with the definition above, and the materiality threshalds set, the following Directars of Redflex Holdings Limited are considered to be
independent:

Name Position Term in Office
Mr. Chris Cooper Chairman, Non Executive Director 2 years
Mr. Robin Debermnardi Non Executive Director 2 years

Mr. Peter Lewinsky Non Executive Director 8 months

There are procedures in place, agreed by the Board, to enable Directors, in furtherance of their duties, to seek independent professional advice at the
Company's expense.

For additional details regarding Board appointments, please refer to our website.
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Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee, which meets at least annually, to ensure that the Board continues to operate within the established
guidelines, including where necessary, selecting candidates for the position of Director. The Nomination Committee comprises Non Executive Directors.
The Nomination Committee comprised the following members throughout the year:

Mr. Christopher Cooper
Mr. Robin Debernardi
Mr. Peter Lewinsky

Mr. Graham Davie

Mr. Bruce Higgins

Mr. Lewinsky and Mr. Higgins became members subsequent to their own appointment. Any proposed Board appointments will be determined by the full
Board.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Board has established an Audit and Risk Management Committee, which operates under a charter established by the Board. 1t is the Board's
responsibility to ensure that an effective internal control framework operates within the entity. This includes internal controls to deal with both the
effectiveness and efficiency of significant business processes, including the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records, and
the reliability of financial information as well as non financial considerations such as the benchmarking of operational key performance indicaters. The
Board has delegated the responsibility for the establishment and maintenance of a framewaork of internal control and ethical standards for the management
of the Consolidated Entity to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Committee also provides the Board with additional assurance regarding the reliability of financial information for inclusion in the financial reports. Al
Non Executive Directors are currently on the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee during the year were;

Mr. Peter Lewinsky

M. Lewinsky has conducted a private investment banking and corporate advisory practice since 1991 following 12 years invesiment banking and
stockbraking experience both in Australia and internationally. Mr. Lewinsky has undertaken a range of corporate finance transactions and managed
a number of major projects for the Boards and shareholiders of public, private and government organizations drawing on his experience in chartered
accountancy, investment banking, stockbroking and private practice. Over the last 10 years Mr. Lewinsky has held a number of Board and Audit
Committee appointments for public, private and government organizations.

Mr. Christopher Cooper

Mr. Cooper has practised as a barrister and solicitor since 1977. He has been involved in commercial real estate development, and investment
management as well as being an owner and operator of aged care health facilities from 1985 to 2001. Mr. Cooper is also a principal and agent manager
for significant share investment portifolios and a Director and Manager of numerous private investment companies and trusts.

Mr. Robin Debernardi

Mr. Debernardi is a prominent businessman who established and developed a range of products in a horticultural business, the success of which is that it
is now known as a household name in the industry. Mr. Debernardi has since been successfully engaged in commercial property developments in Victoria
and Queensland, while developing a rural property in North Central Victoria. He brings substantial experience in assisting companies involved in high
growth phases of their development

The external auditor is invited to attend all Audit and Risk Committee meetings.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is also responsible for directing and monitoring the internal audit function and nomination of the external
auditor and reviewing the adequacy of the scope and quality of the annual statutory audit and haff-year statutory review.

Remuneration Committee

It is the Company's objective to provide maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high guality Board and Executive team by remunerating
Directors and key Executives fairly and appropriately with reference to relevant employment market conditions. To assist in achieving this objective,
the Remuneration Committee links the nature and amount of Executive Directors’ and officers’ emoluments to the Company’s financial and operational
performance. The expected outcomes of the remuneration structure are:

* retention and motivation of key Executives

* attraction of quality management to the Company

* performance initiatives which allow Executives to share the rewards of the success of the Company

There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits, other than statutory superannuation, to Non Executive Directors.

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the Directors themselves and the Chief Executive Officer and the
Executive team. The Remuneration Committee is currentty comprised of the following Directors:

Mr. Robin Debernardi
Mr. Chris Cooper
Mr. Graham Davie
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Board Responsibilities

As the Board acts on behalf of and is accountable to the sharehoiders, the Board seeks to identify the expectations of the shareholders, as well as other
regulatory and ethical expectations and obligations. In addition, the Board is responsible for identifying areas of significant business risk and ensuring
arrangements are in place to adequately manage those risks.

The responsibility for the operation and administration of the Consolidated Entity is delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive Officer and the
Executive team. The Board assures that this team is adequately qualified and experienced to discharge their responsibilities and has in place procedures
to assess the performance of the Chief Executive and the Executive team.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that management's objectives and activities are aligned with the expectations and risks identified by the Board. To
ensure this is achieved the Board has a number of mechanisms in place, including:

The Board approves strategic plans, operating plans and budgets. The Board also reviews implementation by management, monitors progress against
budget, including establishment and monitoring of key performance indicators for all significant business processes, designed to meet stakeholders’
needs and manage business risk.

The Board is actively involved in developing and approving initiatives and strategies designed to ensure the continued growth and success of the entity,
including:

* establishment of committees to report on occupational health and safety and environmental issues and concerns;

* procedures to allow Directors to seek professional independent advice at the Company's expense;

* procedures to allow Directors to review approvat of major contracts and financing arrangements including financial risk in such areas as currency,
interest rate and credit policies and exposures, and to monitor management's actions to ensure they are in line with Company policy.

Monitoring of the Board's Performance and Communication to Shareholders
In order to ensure the Board continues to discharge its responsibilities in an appropriate manner, the performance of all Directors is reviewed annually by
the Chairman. If the performance of a Director was considered unsatisfactory, they would be asked to retire.

Information is communicated to shareholders through:

* The annual report which is distributed to all shareholders

* The half-yearly report which is made available by way of an ASX release

* The annual general meeting

» ASXreleases in accordance with the entity’s continuous disclosure policy
« Information available on the Company's website at www.redfiex.com.au

* Public and private briefings. Any new material information which is released at briefings is made generally available concurrently by way of an ASX
release
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Revenue from Ordinary Activities

Operating expenses

Materials & Consumables used

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Borrowing Costs

Salaries & Wages Expense

Qutlays Capitalised in Research & Development

Other expenses from Crdinary activities

Specific items

Total expenses from Ordinary Activities

Profit (Loss) from Ordinary Activities before Income Tax
Income Tax (Expense) / Benefit attributable to Ordinary Activities

Net Profit / (Loss) attributable to members of Redflex Holdings
Limited

Net exchange difference on translation of foreign staterments of foreign
controlied entity.

Equity raising costs

Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments attributable to
members of Redflex Holdings Limited and recognised directly in
equity

Total changes in equity not resulting from transactions with owners
as owners

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
Note 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
2 33,312,212 23,516,739 1,508,627 1,707,216
5,669,048 5,599,099 0 0

4,808,543 3,706,804 125,249 107,061

373,607 141,764 13,812 141,764

13,453,312 12,140,971 560,809 742,643

(2,025,234) (1,653,761) 0 0

3 7,732,993 2,128,177 968,420 1,614,526
3(a) (15,743) 5,190,571 15,094,195 1,740,743
29,996,526 27,253,625 16,762,485 4,346,737

3,315,686 (3,736,886)  (15,253,858) (2,639,521)

4 0 0 0 0

3,315,686 (3,736,886)  (15,253,858) (2,639,521)

(4,673,473) (2,926,294) 0 0
(37,381) (67,518) (37,381) (67,518)
(4,710,854) (2,993,812 (37,381) (67,518)

(1,395,168)  (6,730,698) (15,291,239)  (2,707,039)

4.36 cents (6.6 cents)
4.20 cents (6.6 cents)

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares used in calculation of Earnings per

Share

76,014,688 56,250,530

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares used in calculation of Diluted Earnings

per Share

79,187,732 56,250,530

PAGE 21




QUA EIVUIGIN I WU [C USRI S TALE P21 U U U
AS AT 30 JUNE 2004

Consolidated Entity Redilex Holdings Limited
Note 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
Current Assets
Cash Assets 2,780,450 1,070,124 127,088 105,481
Term Deposits 11 1,239,898 1,627,425 585,000 1,541,134
Receivables 6(a) 8,177,712 5,329,976 685,430 94,476
Inventories 7 10,278,569 10,548,366 0 0
Prepayments 1 354,481 328,031 354,481 263,071
22,831,110 18,903,922 1,751,999 2,004,162
Non-Current Assets
Receivables 6(b) 0 265,511 49,726,754 54,279,588
Investments 8 0 0 3,740,142 3.740.142
Property Plant & Equipment 9 27,965,679 18,765,420 254,346 108,687
intangibles 10 8,371,710 6,833.546 380,393 0
36,337,389 25,864,477 54,101,635 58,128,417
Total Assets 59,168,499 44,768,399 55,853,634 60,132,579

Current Liabilities

Payables 12 4,699,463 4,429,511 93,488 70,817
Borrowings 12 3,973.816 768,000 0 516.022
Employee Provisions 13 815,879 415,416 56,095 45,862

9,489,158 5,613,927 149,581 632,701

Non Current Liabilities

Borrowings 12 232,908 2,171.351 6,398,994 8.836,524
Employee Provisions 13 261,514 339,533 120,140 123,695
494,422 2,510,884 6,519,134 8,960,219
Total Liabilities 9,983,580 8,124,811 6,668,715 9,592,920
Net Assets 49,184,919 36,643,588 49,184,919 50,539,659
Equity
Contributed Equity 14 73,633,013 59,733,895 73.633.013 59,733,895
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 14 (7.802,347) (3,128.874) 0 0
Accumulated Losses 15 (16,645,747) (19,961,433) (24,448,094) (9,194,236)
Total Equity 49,184,919 36,643,588 49,184,919 50,539,659
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

interest received

Interest and other costs of finance paid

Net Cash Flows from (Used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Purchase of Goodwill

Capitalised research and development

Loans to Related Parties

Net Cash Flows from (Used in) investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Bank Borrowings

Lease liability incurred

Shareholder loans received (paid)

Cash proceeds from share issues

Share Issue Costs

Net Cash Flows from {(Used in) financing activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash held
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Cash at Beginning of Financial Year
Cash at End of Financial Year

Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the year consists of:
Cash on hand

Cash at bank

Note

Consolidated Entity

Redfiex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
30,464,476 22,256,603 0 0
(24,611,513) (26,352,573) 608,252 (4,198,955)
79,648 78,074 64,915 13,463
(373,607) (146,979) (13,812) (141,674)
5,559,004 (4,164,875) 659,355 (4,327,166)
(16,446,090) (6,586,731) (250,887) (215,748)
(400,414) 0 (400.414) 0
(2,134,311) (1,813,539) 0 0
0 0 (11,198,283) (8,334,099)
(18,980,815) (8,400,270)  (11,849,584) (8,549,847)
1,286,443 2,687,373 (2,687,373) 2,687,373
(4,067) 252,978 0 0
0 (292,121) 0 (292,121)
13,936,590 10,653,154 13,936,590 10,658,154
(87,381) (67,518) (37.381) (67,518)
15,181,585 13,233,866 11,211,836 12,980,888
1,759,774 668,721 21,607 103,875
(49,448) 0 0 0
1,070,124 401,403 105,481 1,606
2,780,450 1,070,124 127,088 105,481
2,103 1,385 500 180
2,778,347 1,068,739 126,588 105,301
2,780,450 1,070,124 127,088 105,481
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 which includes applicable Accounting Standards. Other mandatory professional reporting requirements (Urgent Issues Group Consensus
Views) have alsc been complied with. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year. The financial report has
been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are those of the Consolidated Entity, comprising Redflex Holdings Limited ({the parent Company) and all
entities controlled by the Company during the year. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same accounting period as the
parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from
intragroup transactions, have been eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Comparatives
Where necessary, comparatives have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year disclosures.

The companies comprising the Redflex Group

Redflex Holdings limited is the Chief Entity. Refer to note 8 for details of all entities comprising the Consclidated Entity

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks readily convertible to cash within two working days
at nominal value, net of any outstanding bank overdrafts where offset arrangements exist

INTANGIBLES

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are deferred only where they are expected to give rise to significant future benefits. Such costs are amortised
over future periods on a basis related to those expected future benefits. The commencement date for amortisation is the date of commissioning
the product and capitalised costs are amortised over & ten year period.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired at the time of acguisition of a

business. Goodwill is amortised over the period which benefits are expected to be received which is on a ten year straight line basis.

Foreign Currencies

~ Transactions in foreign currencies of entities within the Consolidated Entity are converted to local currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the
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date of the transaction.

Amounts payable to and by the entities within the Consolidated Entity that are outstanding at the balance date and are denominated in foreign
currencies have been converted to local currency using rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial year.

A monetary item arising under a foreign currency contract outstanding at the reporting date where the exchange rate for the monetary item is
fixed in the contract is translated at the exchange rate fixed in the contract. Except for certain foreign currency options, all resulting exchange
rate differences arising upon settlement or restaterment are recognised as revenues and expenses for the year.

All exchange differences arising on settlement or re-statement are brought to account in determining the profit or loss for the financial year, and
transactions costs, premiums and discounts on forward currency contracts are deferred and amortised over the life of the contract. Premiums
on foreign currency options are expensed as incurred.

The USA traffic entity is considered financially and operationally independent of the parent entity. Accordingly the financial reports of the
overseas operations are translated using the current rate method and any exchange differences are taken directly to the fareign currency
translation reserve.

Leases
Leases are classified at their inception as either financial or operating leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to
reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ownership.

The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased item, are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis.

Leases which effectively transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the group are treated as
financial leases and capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and disclosed as property, plant & equipment. A lease
liability of equal value is also recognised.

Capitalised lease assets are depreciated over the term of the lease. Minimum lease payments are allocated between interest expense and
reduction of the lease liability with the interest expense calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease and recognised directly in the
operating results.
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PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Cost and Valuation

ltems of property plant and equipment comprising a class of non-current assets are brought to account at cost and have not been revalusd.

Depreciation
Depreciation rates are adopted as follows:

Furniture & Fittings: 13-18% pa reducing balance

Leasehold Improvements: 20% pa straight line

Property, Plant & Equipment;  Straight line over a period of seven years
The depreciation rates are consistent with the prior year.

TAXES

Income Taxes

Tax-gffect accounting is applied using the liabllity method whereby income tax is regarded as an expense and is calculated on the accounting
profit after allowing for permanent differences. To the extent that timing differences occur between the time items are recognised in the
financial statements and when items are taken into account in determining taxable income, the net related income tax benefit calculated

at current rates, is treated as a future income tax benefit or deferred income tax. Tax benefits arising from net timing differences and carry
forward tax losses are not brought to account as the benefit which has not been brought to account will only be obtained if:

(i) future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit to be realised;
(i the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with; and
(iii) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Consolidated Entity in realising the benefit.

Tax Consolidation

For the purposes of income taxation, the Directors of Redflex Hoidings Limited and its 100% Australian owned subsidiaries intend to form a
tax consolidated group. Members of the group will enter into a tax sharing arrangement in order to allocate income tax expense to the wholly
owned subsidiaries on a prorata basis. In addition the agreement will provide for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities
should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated as net profit attributable to members divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any
bonus element where applicable. Diluted EPS is calculated as the net profit attributable to members, adjusted for costs of servicing equity, the
after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as expenses, and other
non-discretionary changes in revenue and expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of potential ordinary shares divided
by the weighted average number of ardinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

investments
All investments are non-current and are carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

Employee Benefits

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to the reporting date. These benefits
include salaries and wages, sick leave and long service leave.

Any liabilities expected to be settled within twelve months are measured at their nominal amounts based on remuneration rates which are
expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

All other employee benefit liabilities are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflow to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. In determining the present value of future cash flows | the market yield as at the reporting
date on national government bonds, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability, are used.

The Consolidated Entity has adopted the revised Accounting Standard AASB 1028 “Employee Benefits” for the measurement of employee
benefit liabilities.

Recoverable Amounts
Non-current assets are not carried at an amount above their recoverable amount. In determining the recoverable amount, cash flows are not
discounted, and where carrying values exceed this recoverable amount, assets are provided for.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably

measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Séle of Goods
Control of the goods has passed to the buyer.
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Rendering of Services
Where the contract outcome can be reliably measured:

control of a right to be compensated for the services has been attained and the stage of completion can be reliably measured. Stage of

completion is measured by reference to the material costs and labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total material costs and
estimated labour hours for each contract.

Where the contract outcome cannot be reliably measured revenue is recognised only to the extent that costs have been incurred.

Unbilled contract revenue

Unbilled contract revenue included in Work In progress represents revenue earned by the Company in advance of being billable under customer
contract terms. Under the terms of some current contracts, the Company cannot bill the municipality untit the court has collected the citation
fine. Management records unbilled contract revenue in these situations, based upon a historical pattern of collections by the courts for the
municipalities. The pattern of collections on these citations is continually reviewed and updated by management.

Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue arises from some contracts whereby the customer pays for services yet to be performed. Revenue is brought to account over
the period in which these services are provided.

Interest revenue
Controt of the right to receive the interest payment.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

» Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
* Raw Materiais - purchase cost on a first-in-first-out basis; and

» Finished goods and work-in-progress - cost of direct material and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

« Infrastructure Components — Components held for resale or conversion into fixed in-ground installations for traffic contracts is carried at
cost. The conversion of these companents to property, plant and equipment occurs at the paint newly contracted sites are commissioned.
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Financial Instruments

Consolidated Entity
30-Jun-04

Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
5 $ $ $

The Consolidated Entity’s accounting policies, including the terms and conditions of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument,
both recognised and unrecognised at the balance date, are as follows, The interest rate risk and fair market valuation of financial instruments are shown in

note 24.

Recognised financial
instruments

(i) Financial Assets
Receivables ~ Trade

Receivables — Controlled Entities

Receivables — Other Corporations

Term deposits

Security Deposit

(ii) Financial Liabilities
Bank Borrowings

Payables

Amount payable to Controlled
Entities

(iii) Equity
Ordinary Shares

NOTE 2

Accounting Policies

Trade receivables are carried at nominal amounts due less any
provision for doubtful debts. A provision for doubtful debts is
recognised when collection of the full nominal amount is no
longer probable.

Amounts (other than trade debts) receivable from related
entities are carried at nominal amounts due. Interest (when
charged) is taken up as income on an accrual basis.

Amounts (other than trade debts) receivable from non related
parties/entities are carried at nominal amounts due. Interest
(when charged) is taken up as income on an accrual basis.

Short term depasits are predominantly in USD and converted
at year end rates. They are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Interest is recognised when earned

Security deposits are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Interest is recognised when earned

Bank borrowings are in USD, converted at year end exchange
rates and carried at the principal amount. Interest is charged
as an expense as it accrues.

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future
for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Consolidated Entity.

Loans from related parties are carried at the principal amount.
Interest (when charged by the lender) is taken up as an
expense on an accrual basis.

Issued and paid-up capital is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received by the Company.

REVENUE FROM CRDINARY ACTIVITIES

Revenue from operating activities:

Revenue from sale of goods & services

Revenue from fee for service contracts
Total revenue from operating activities

Terms and Conditions

Credit sales are on 30 day terms.

Loans are at call and non interest bearing.

Loans and interest outstanding, if any, are
at call.

Short term deposits have an average
maturity of 90 days and effective interest
rates of between 1.0% and 2%.

Security deposits remain for the term of
the lease and achieve effective interest
rates of ~2%.

Interest is charged at the bank's
benchmark rate plus margin.

Trade liabilities are normally settled
between 30 and 60 days.

Loans are at call and non interest bearing.

The Company is authorised to issug up
to 200,000,000 Crdinary Shares. Details
of shares issued and the terms and
conditions of Options outstanding over
Ordinary Shares at balance date are set
out in Note 14.

Revenues from outside the operating activities:

Interest from other persons

Grant Income

Management Fees

Total revenue from outside the operating activities
Total revenue from ordinary activities

15,807,134 12,987,964 0 0

17,252,930 10,501,949 0 0
383,060,064 23,499,913 0

79,648 16,826 64,915 0

172,500 0 0 0

0 0 1,443,712 1,707,216

252,148 18,826 1,508,627 1,707,216

33,312,212 23,516,739 1,508,627 1,707,216
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Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
NOTE 3 EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Movements in Work In Progress 2,563,115 (4,239,665) 0 o]
Operating lease rentaf 248,428 340,971 0 0
Occupancy costs 1,491,492 957,645 267,878 82,111
Provision for Doubtful Debts 27,000 158,000 0 0
Other expenses from operating activities 3,402,958 4.911,226 700,542 1,532,415
7,732,993 2,128,177 968,420 1,614,526
Depreciationiof plant & equipment 3,811,982 2,938,747 105,228 107.061
Amortisation of intangibles 996,561 768,057 20,021 0
4,808,543 3,706.804 125,249 107,061
Materials & Consumables used 5,669,048 5,599.099 0 0
Interest expense other persons and corporations 373,607 141,764 13,812 0
Qutlays capitalised in intangibles (2,025,234) (1,653,761) 0 0
Salaries & wage expense 13,453,312 12,140,971 560,809 742,643
Specific expenses (15,743) 5,190,571 15,094,195 1,740,743
Total expenses from ordinary activities 29,996,526 27,253,625 16,762,485 4,346,737
(a) Specific Expenses:
Profit from Ordinary activities before income tax expense includes
the following revenue and expenses whose disclosure is relevant in
explaining the financial performance of the entity:
During the previous Financial Year the Company disposed of a
business where consideration for the sale of the business includes
payment from future royalties. The Directors have reassessed and
provided for the carrying value of the future recelvable due to the
uncertainty relating to the receipt of future royalties. 0 1,250,000 0 1,250,000
Provision for dimunition in related party receivables 0 0 15,484,938 0
Provision for writedown of receivables emanating from past Structured
Finance transactions. 375,000 350,000 0 100,000
Foreign exchange losses arising from inability to hedge foreign
currency receivables. 0 1,756,768 0 0
Non-recurring costs comprising:
costs associated with planned debt/equity financing activity in the 0 1.040.949 0 0
USA that was not completed when a more favourable financing cption
became avaitable
0 202,111 0 0
and costs assaciated with group restructuring.
Provision for unrecovered loan bafances relating to the ESAS loan
scheme. (390,743) 390,743 (390,743) 390,743
Total Specific Expenses (15,743) 5,190,571 15,094,195 1,740,743

Acquisition of Business Assets
Assets and liabilities acquired were:

Cn 17 December 2003 the Company acquired the asse ts of Poltech International timited and its subsidiary Locktronics Pty Lid. The assets
acquired included inventory, fixed assets, Intellectual property and access to contracts with a number of government agencies. The allocation
of the purchase price between asset categories was:

Inventory 362.865
Fixed assets 232,721
Goodwill on acquisition 400,414
Total assets 996,000
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Consalidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $

NOTE4 INCOME TAX

The prima facie income tax on the profit (oss) from operations is
reconciled to the income tax (expense)/benefit as follows:

Profit/(Loss) from Operations before Income Tax 3,315,868 (3,736,886) 15,281,239 (2,8639,521)

The prima facie tax, using tax rates applicable in Australia of 30% (2003
- 30%), on profit (loss) from operations differs from the accounts as

follows:

Prima facie tax on profit (loss) from operations 994,760 (1,121,066) 4,587,371 (791,856)
Tax effect of permanent differences (547,223) (430,500) (4,518,047) 781,629
Under (over) provision in prior years 0 {305,055) 0 0
Carried forward (losses offset) benefits created (447 ,537) 1,246,511 (69,324) (10,227)
Income Tax Expense 0 0 0 0
Future income tax benefits from c/f income tax losses timing differences

not brought to account:

On revenue account 1,913,613 3,801,431 1,913,613 3,801,431
On capital account 417,223 417,223 417 223 417,223

The above future income tax benefit which has not been brought to account will only be obtained if:

(i) future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit to be realised;
(iiy the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with; and

(i) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Consolidated Entity in realising the benefit

The Company has no franking credits.

During the year ended 30 June 1935 the Company sought and obtained a favourable private tax ruling relating to the eligibility of the carried
forward tax losses. As a result of issues identified in calculating these tax losses, the Company has sought advice as to whether income
derived by the Company from R&D Syndication is of a revenue or capital nature for taxation purposes, and also as to the extent to which the
tax losses available to the Company are able to be used to offset that income. On the basis of advice received the Company does not believe
that any contingent liability exists regarding the eligibility of carried forward tax losses.

Tax Consolidation

For the purposes of income taxation, the Directors of Redflex Holdings Limited and its 100% Australian owned subsidiaries intend to form a
tax consolidated group. Members of the group will enter into a tax sharing arrangement in order to allocate income tax expense to the wholly
owned subsidiaries on a prorata basis. In addition the agreement will provide for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities
should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations.

NOTES AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
Amount received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young for:

Auditing the financial report of the entity and subsidiaries. 120,850 97,585 120,850 97,585

Auditing of separate financial statements for subsidiaries within Australia 20,000 28,000 0 0

Auditing of separate financial statements for subsidiaries outside

Australia 105,857 112,327 0 0

Other advisory services 0 18,900 0 0
246,707 256,812 120,850 97,585
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NOTE 6

NOTE 7

NOTE 8

PAGE 30

RECEIVABLES

(@) Current

Trade Debtors

Cther Debtors

Other Corporations
Provision for non-recovery

(b) Non Current

Controlled entities

Provision for dimunition in value
Other Corporations

Provision for non-recovery

INVENTORIES

Raw Materials - at cost

Work in Progress — at cost
Infrastructure Components — at cost

INVESTMENTS

Shares in controlled entities

Controlled Entities of Redflex Holdings Limited

Redflex Limited
Aerospace Systems Ltd
Silvertene (R&D) Pty Ltd
Redflex Traffic Systems Inc

Controlled Entities of Redfiex Limited
Redflex Touchscreens Pty Ltd

Redflex Communications Systems Pty Ltd
Redflex Management Services Pty Ltd
Redflex Finance Pty Ltd

Taglink Pty Ltd

Tiripa Pty Ltd

APR Investments Pte Ltd (a)

Redprime Pty Ltd

Controlled Entities of Redflex Communications
Systems Pty Ltd

Redflex Communication Systems Inc

Controlled Entities of Redflex Traffic Systems Inc

Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd

Redflex Traffic Systems (California) Inc formerly Traffic

Safety Systems Inc

Consolidated Entity

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03

$ $ S $

7,620,996 4.950,266 0 0

569,112 793,417 685,430 193,723

1.434,450 290,293 448,753 446,753

(1,446,846) (704.000) (446,753) (546,000)

8,177,712 5,329,976 685,430 94,476

0 0 65,211,692 54,091,829

0 0 (15,484,938) 0

783,684 1,779.511 783,684 1,241,759

(783,684) (1,514,000) (783,684) {1.054,000)

0 265,511 49,726,754 54,279,588

8,177,712 5,595,487 50,412,184 54,374,064

1,379,895 1,221.367 0 0

3,369,277 5,932,392 0 0

5,529,397 3.394,607 0 0

10,278,569 10,548,366 0 0

Country of

Incorporation % Owned Investment in Subsidiary

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03

$ $

Aust 100 100 3,356,668 3,356.668

Aust 100 100 100,003 100,003

Aust 100 100 283,470 283,470

USA 100 100 1 1

3,740,142 3,740,142
Aust 100 100
Aust 100 100
Aust 100 100
Aust 100 100
Aust 100 100
Aust 100 100
Singapore 100 100
Aust 100 100
USA 100 100
Aust 100 100
USA 100 100

(a) This Company is not audited by Ernst & Young, Redflex Holdings Limited’s auditors.
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Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
NOTE S PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Fittings 572,248 747,581 132,312 72,375
Leasehold Improvements 302.296 355,699 156,622 69,263
Plant and Equipment 37,631,193 25,574,747 608,572 74110
38,405,737 26,678,027 897,506 215,748
Less Accumulated depreciation
Furniture and Fittings (389,989) (473,042) (121,656) (32,337)
Leasehold Improvements (183,164) (200,297) (144,610) (40,319)
Plant and Equipment (9,866,905) (7,239,268) (376,894) (34,405)
(10,440,058) (7,912,607) (643,160) (107,061)
Total Written Down Amount 27,965,679 18,765,420 254,346 108,687
Furniture and Fittings
Carrying amount at beginning 274,539 40,038
Additions 55,691 1,397
Disposals (42,657) (2,657)
Depreciation Expense (144,100) (28,122)
143,473 10,656
Leasehold Improvements
Carrying amount at beginning 155,402 28,944
Additions 38,773 0
Disposals (34,798) {4,798)
Depreciation Expense (40,245) (12,134)
119,132 12,012
Plant & Equipment
Carrying amount at beginning 18,335,479 38,705
Additicns 12,995,232 256,946
Disposals 0 0
Depreciation Expense (3,627,637) (64,973)
27,703,074 231,678
Total Written Down Amount 27,965,679 254,346
NOTE 10  INTANGIBLES
Research and Development Expenditure
Capitalised (at Cost) 10,603,451 8,469,141 0 0
Less accumulated amortisation (2,612,134) (1,635,594) 0 0
Goodwill at cost 400,414 0 400,414 0
Less accumulated amortisation (20,021) 0 (20,021) 0
8,371,710 6,833,547 380,393 0
NOTE 11  OTHER ASSETS
Current -
Prepayments 354,481 328,031 354,481 263,071
Security Deposits 1,239,898 1,627,545 585,000 1,541,134
1,594,379 1,955,456 939,481 1,804,205
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NOTE 12

NOTE 13

PAGE 32

Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
PAYABLES & INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
(a) Current - Payables
Trade Creditors 2,777,052 3,527,923 0 0
Deferred Revenue 428,987 0 0 0
Other Creditors 1,493,424 901,588 93,486 70,817
4,699,463 4,429,511 93,486 70,817
Current - Borrowings
Bank Borrowings 3,761,801 516.022 0 516,022
Lease liability 212,015 252,978 0 0
3,973,816 769,000 0 516,022
(b) Non-current - Borrowings
Bank Borrowings 0 2,171,351 0 2,171,351
Lease liability 232,908 0 0 0
Amount Payable to Controlled Entities 0 0 6,398,994 6,665,173
232,908 2,171,351 6,398,994 8,836,524
8,906,187 7,369,862 6,492,480 9,423,363

During the year the Company's banker, National Australia Bank provided a USD 5.0 million loan facility secured by a Mortgage Debenture over
the assets and undertakings of Redilex Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. Of this amount USD 3.585 million was drawn at 30 June 2004,

Subsequent to year end the Company acquired a USD 13 million secured Revolving Credit Facility to fund the growth within the USA Traffic
Division. The initial draw-down was used to repay the National Australia Bank debt facilities. The debenture held by the National Australia
Bank over all the Redflex Traffic companies was removed.

The new financier, Harris Trust and Savings Bank, was granted a first and only priority senior security interest in Redflex Traffic Systems Inc and
its subsidiaries (Note 8)

Lease liabilities are secured by way of a charge over the leased assets.

EMPLOYEE PRCVISICNS
(a) Current

Provision for Employee Benefits 815,879 415,416 56,095 45,862

(b} Non-current

Provision for Employee Benefits 261,514 339,533 120,140 123,695
: 1,077,393 754,949 176,235 169,557

An employee share plan has been established where Redflex may, at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, grant Options to
Executives and certain members of staff of the Consalidated Entity. The Options, issued for nil consideration, are granted in accordance with
performance guidelines established by the Directors. The Options are issued for a term of 5 years. The Options cannot be transferred and will
not be quoted on the ASX. There are currently 9 Executives and 23 staff eligible for this scheme.

RDFAM RDFAQ RDFAP RDFAK RDFAR RDFAS RDFAT

Grant date 16/10/2003 21/5/2001 1/2/2001 16/9/1998  26/9/2003  26/9/2003 1/6/2004
Vesting date 8/10/1999 20/5/2001 1/2/2001 16/9/1998 {0 (ii) (i)
Expiry date 8/8/2004 20/5/2006  11/1/2006 16/9/2003 5 years 5 years 5 years
Weighted average Exercise Price $2.97 $1.52 $1.66 $0.69 $0.50 $0.5859 $2.0600
Number of Options at beginning of year 40.000 60.000 20,000 100,000 0 0 0
Number of Options exercised 0 0 0 (100.000) 0 (100,000) 0
Number of Options expired 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Number of Options granted 0 0 0 0 1,800,000 2.655,000 1,348,000
0 1,800,000 2,555,000 1,348,000

Number of Options at end of year 40,000 60,000 20,000

(i) The vesting date for RDFAR Options are one third on 1 February 2004 with the balance vesting on a monthly basis pro-rata through to 1
February 2008.

(ify The vesting date for RDFAS Options are one third on each of 1 February 2004, 2005 and 2006.
(i) The vesting date for RDFAT Options are one third on each of 1 June 2005, 2006 and 2007.




for the year ended 30 June 2004

NOTE 14

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Issued and paid up capital
83,141,433 Ordinary Shares fully paid, (2003 - 67,623,720 Shares)

Options
Quoted Options Nil (2003: 6,261,796 )

Unquoted Employee Options (2003-220,000)
Number

40,000

60,000

20,000

1,800,000

2,555,000
1,348,000

Unguoted Non-employee Options
500,000

Movements in Shares on Issue
Beginning of the Financial Year
Issued during the year by -
Private Placement
Conwversion of Options
Share Purchase Plan
Less Transaction Costs

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Beginning of the Financial Year

Effect of Exchange rate movement on translation

End of the Financial Year

Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
73,633,013 59,733,895 73,633,013 59,733,895
0 0 0 0
Grant Date  Vesting Date Expiry Date Exercise Price
8/8/1999 8/8/1999 8/8/2004 $2.97
20/5/2001 20/5/2001 20/5/2006 $1.82
11/1/2001 11/1/2001 11/1/2008 $1.66
26/9/2003 0] 5 years $0.50
26/9/2003 (i) 5years $0.5859
1/6/2004 (i) 5 years $2.06
29/6/2000 30/6/2004 30/6/2005 $4.98
Number of
Shares $
67,623,720 59,733,895
7,944,184 6,732,696
3,475,035 3,730,329
4,098,494 3,473,474
(37,381)
83,141,433 73,633,013
(3,128,874) (202,580) 0 0
(4,673,473) (2,826,294) 0 0
(7,802,347) (3,128,874) 0 0

The Foreign Currency Translation Reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of

self sustaining foreign operations.

(i) The vesting date for RDFAR Options are one third on 1 February 2004 with the balance vesting on a monthly basis pro-rata through to 1

February 2006.

(i) The vesting date for RDFAS Options are one third on each of 1 February 2004, 2005 and 20086.

(iii) The vesting date for RDFAT Options are one third on each of 1 June 2005, 2006 and 2007.

Movements in Issued Capital
Issue of Shares

During the year the Company issued the following shares:

1. 3,275,035 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of Options at a price of $1.10 per share fully paid.

2 e

7,944,184 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of private placement at a price of $0.8475 per share fully paid.
4,098,494 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of a Share Purchase Plan at a price of $0.8475 per share fully paid.
100,000 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of unlisted emp\gyee Options at $0.69 per share fully paid
30,000 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of unlisted employee Options at $0.5894 per share fully paid.

70,000 Ordinary Shares were issued by way of conversion of unlisted employee Options at $0.5909 per share fully paid
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for the year ended 30 June 2004

Consolidated Entity Redfiex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
8 $ $ $

Issue of Options

During the year ended 30 June 2004, the following Options were issued:

1. 1,800,000 Options over Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $0.50.

2. 2,655,000 Options over Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $0.58 compounding at 3% p.a. until exercised

3. 1,348,000 Options over Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of $2.06 compounding at the rate of increase in the All Ordinaries Index until
exercised.

Expiration of Options

6,261,796 Options issued at an exercise price of $1.10 expired on 31 December 2003. Of these Options 3,275,035 were exercised. The
remaining Options expired.

Redflex Employee Share Acquisition Scheme and Redflex Employee Option Plan

Redflex Holdings Limited has established the Redflex Employee Share Acquisition Scheme and the Redflex Employee Option Plan. Options
are allocated to employees based on seniority with management discretion permissible.

The terms of the Employee Share Acquisition Scheme provide for loans to eligible employees of up to 95% of the issue price of shares in
Redflex Holdings Limited, repayable in five years. The terms of these loans provide, amongst other things. that the final amount payable shall
not exceed the market value of the shares purchased under the loan arrangement.

NOTE 15  ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Balance at Beginning of year (19,961,433) (16,224 547) (9,194.236) (6.554,715)
Net Profit (Loss) attributable to members of Redflex Holdings

Limited 3,315,686 (3,736,886) (15,253,858) (2.639,521)
Balance at End of Year (16,645,747)  (19,961,433)  (24,448,094) (9,194,236)

NOTE16  LEASE COMMITMENTS
Operating Leases

Operating Lease Commitments Payable not iater than one year 1,401,327 1,504,732 625,264 625,264
Later than one year but no later than two years 1,228,882 1,501,843 625,264 625264
Later than two years but not later than five years 1,936,771 2,691,306 1,042,106 625.264
Later than five years 0 0 0 1,042,106
4,566,980 5,697,881 2,292,634 2,917,898

Finance Leases
Finance Leases Payable not later than one year 212,015 252,978 0 0
Later than one year but no later than two years 232908 0 0 0
Later than two'years but not later than five years 0 0 0 0
Later than five years 0 0 0 0
444,923 252,978 0 0
Future Finance Charges 8,572 11972 0 0
Lease liability 436,351 241,008 0 0
Total Lease Liability 444,923 252,978 0 0
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NOTE 17

NCTE 18

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of Profit (Loss) from ordinary
activities after tax, to net cash inflow from
operations

Net Profit/(Loss) after Income Tax

Non Cash Flow Items

Depreciation Expense

Amortisation of Intangibles

Amortisation of Goodwill

Provision for Employee Entitlements

Provision for dimunition in value of receivables
Provision for Doubtful Debts

Provision for non-recovery of receivables

Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities
Decreaseg/(Increase) in Term Deposits
Decrease/(Increase) in Prepayments

Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables — Non current

Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables - current
Decrease/(increase) Inventories

Increase in Deferred Revenue
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables

Net Cash Inflow/(Outfiow) from Operating Activities

SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS

Consolidated Entity

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
3,315,686 (3,736,886) (15,253,858) (2,639,521)
3,851,402 2,838,747 105,228 107,061
976,540 768.057 0 0
20,021 0 20,021
322,443 (107,314) 6,678 169,557
0 0 15,484,938 0
27,000 0 0 0
(40,000) 2,008,000 (390,743) 1,600,000
(387,527) (910,599) 441,134 (1,026,134
(26,450) 0 423,590 0
265,511 240,788 0 (1,694,578)
(2,741,614) (1,076,867) {200,302) (707,972)
(277,958) (4,800,125) 0 0
428,987 0 0 0
(175,037) 511,324 22,669 (135,581)
5,559,004 (4,164,875) 659,355 (4,327,166)

The Consolidated Entity has arranged Group superannuation plans whereby the employee and the employer contribute varying amounts of
superannuation, depending on an employee’s remuneration package. In other cases employees have nominated other funds to which the

Consolidated Entity contributes at the direction of the employee.

In addition, the Consolidated Entity had during the year ended 30 June 2004, a statutory responsibility to contribute 9% of an Australian
employee's salary, which is also paid to a number of funds as directed by each employee.

All of the economic entities' responsibilities in respect to superannuation commitments relating to the year ended 30 June 2004 have been
discharged. All relevant superannuation funds are Accumulation Funds and accordingly there is no unfunded liability as at this date.
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for the year ended 30 June 2004

NOTE 192 DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES

The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors” is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the
Directors, the Chief Executive officer and the Executive team. The Remuneration Committee assess the appropriateness of the nature and
amount of emoluments of such officers on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective
of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and Executive team.

To assist in achieving these objectives, the Remuneration Committee links the nature and amount of Executive Directors and officers’
emoluments to the Company’s and divisional financia! and operational performance.

Primary

Emoluments Base Fee Bonus
$ $
Specified Directors
Chris Cooper 0 0
Robin Debernardi 0 0
Peter Lewinsky 28,000 0
Graham Davie 160,810 26,306
Bruce Higgins 318,702 79,675

Total remuneration for specified
Directors 507,512 105,981

Post employment

Other Superannuation

3,000
3,000
0
0

86,957

92,957

2,520
14,474

16,994

Equity
Options
$

0
0
0
0
423,631

429,631

Total

3,000
3,000
30,520
201,580

914,965

1,153,075

Prior to his appointments as a Director on 16 October 2003, Mr. Lewinsky was retained as a corporate advisory consultant and received fees

of $14,000 for services provided to that date.

Emoluments iof the five most highly paid Executive officers of the Company and the Consolidated Entity.

The Directors have determined the officers of the Company to be the key managers of the business units and the Chief Financial Officer.

Primary Post Equity Total
Employment
Emoluments Position Base Cash Superannuation Options
Salary Bonus $ S S
$ $
Specified Executives
Aaron Rosenberg Vice President Sales & Marketing- Redflex
Traffic Systems Inc 209,358 43,458 6,547 84,138 343,502
Karen Finley Vice President Operations- Redflex Traffic
Systems Inc 201,413 11,228 5,845 84,138 302,624
Ricardo Fiusco General Manager - Australia Redflex Traffic
Systems 150,229 33,000 13,521 84,138 280,888
Ron Johnson Chief Financial Officer 152,660 0 13,740 34,138 250,538
Peter Harrison General Manager — Redflex
Communications Systems 130,000 0 10,935 84138 225073
Total remuneration for specified Executives 843,660 87,687 50,588 420,680 1,402,625

In accordance with the existing Employee Option Plan, Redflex Holdings Limited has taken a decision to issue Options over the ordinary
shares of Redflex Holdings Limited to certain Executives of group entities. The Options are issued for nil consideration, and granted in
accordance with performance guidelines established by the Directors of the holding Company.
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Options of specified Directors and specified Executives

Number of Options Exercised Granted Expired Number of Options Number
at beginning of at end of period of Options
period vested as at

30 June 2004
(Exercisable)

Specified Directors

Graham Davie 20,000 (20,000) 0 0 0 0
Chris Cooper 0 0 0 0 0 0
Robin Debernardi 0 0 0 0 0 0
Peter Lewinsky 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bruce Higgins 0 0 1,800,000 0 1,800,000 800,000
Specified Executives

Aaron Rosenberg 0 0 405,000 0 405,000 135,000
Karen Finley 0 0 405,000 0 405,000 135,000
Ricardo Fiusco 0 0 405,000 0 405,000 135,000
Ron Johnson 40,000 0 405,000 0 445,000 135,000
Peter Harrison 20,000 0 405,000 0 425,000 135,000

The Options were issued in accordance with the existing Redflex Employee Option Plan on the following terms:

(@ One third of the Options vested on 1 February 2004;

(b) One third of the Options will vest on 1 February 2005;
(©) One third of the Options will vest on 1 February 20086;
d) Options can not be exercised until after the vesting date.

(

(e) The Options expire after 5 years;

() The RDFAR Options are at an exercise price of $0.50
(

9) The RDFAS Options are at a nominal exercise price of $0.58 and increasing at the rate of 3% per annum (compounding) until the time

of exercise.
(h) The RDFAT Options are at an exercise price of $2.06 compounding at the rate of increase in the All Ordinaries Index until exercised.
(i Options that have not vested cannot be exercised after termination of employment.

The Options granted to Mr. Bruce Higgins were allocated prior to his appointment as a Director.

Shareholdings of specified Directors and specified Executives

Shares held in Redflex Holdings Ordinary shares at 1 Granted as On exercise of Options, Ordinary shares
Limited July 2003 remuneration private placement, Share at
Purchase Plan and on market 30 June 2004
Specified Directors
Chris Cooper 360,676 0 386,404 747,080
Robin Debernardi 2,686,393 0 537,980 3,224,373
Graham Davie 1,054,564 0 32,206 1,086,770
Peter Lewinsky 0 0 41,800 41,800
Bruce Higgins 0 0 0 0
Total 4,101,633 0 998,390 5,100,023
Specified Executives
Aaron Rosenberg 0 0 0 0
Karen Finley 8,463 0 0 8,463
Ricardo Fiusco 0 0 0 0
Ron Johnson 48,385 0 11,800 60,185
Peter Harrison 6,770 0 5,900 12,670
Total 63,618 0 17,700 81,318

All of the variations in equities during the year ended 30 June 2004 related to equities bought under the Share Purchase Plan during
November 2003, the Private Placement for which consent was received at the 2003 Annual General Meeting, the issue of employee Options,
and the exercise of listed Options expiring on 31 December 2003.
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for the year ended 30 June 2004

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $
NOTE 20 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Indemnity Guarantees
A bank has issued Indemnity Guarantees against which Letters of Set Off are in place: 70,000 70.000
Banks have issued other indemnity Guarantees in respect of rental deposits and bid bonds: 1,239,898 542 450

Structured Equity Funding for Visible Voice Unit Trust

Redflex Holdings Limited (Redflex) entered into a licensing arrangement with an investment partnership in June 2000 which provided. amongst
other things:

1. A one-off four year license fee paid to Redflex of $10 million whereby the partnership is licensed certain rights over the Visible Voice
software. This amount was held on deposit to secure financiers to the Syndicate and Redflex’s abligations per (4) below.

2. Payments of $2.6 million by the partnership to Redflex to commercialise Visible Voice during the years ended 30 June 2000 and 30 June
2001; and

3. Royalty payments by Redflex over the term of the license of a minimum of $375,000. and up to 12% of gross sales applicable to certain
geographical regions;

4. An obligation in the form of a put option for Redflex to subscribe for equity in the partnership, for an amount of no more than the proceeds
of (1) above

The cash proceeds of $10 million referred to in (1) above and accrued interest has not been booked as income or as an asset in the books
of Redflex as aicorresponding liability existed for the put option referred to in (4) above. These amounts were offset as part of the windup
proceedings in.July 2004.

In relation to the above, contingent liabilities exist in the form of any claims that may be substantiated by the partnership in circumstances
where Redflex is in breach of the agreements entered into. The Company has been advised by the manager of the partnership. that the
Australian Taxation Office has issued amended assessments, to each partner, which disallow the deductions claimed by each partner. At this
stage, the Company understands that investors have objected to the ATO's revised assessments.

The partnership and the transaction are in the process of being wound up in accordance with the transaction agreements. Part of the process
established at the time of the transaction gives the partners the option to dispose of their interest in Visible Voice by way of the issue of an Exit
Notice in accordance with transaction documents.

The Exit Price is to be calculated in accordance with the terms of the transaction agreements, and may be paid in shares in Redflex Holdings
Limited or cash, at the sole option of Redflex. The Company has received an Exit Notice and a calculation by the Partnership of the Exit Price
due to the partners.

The Exit Price proposed by the Partners is disputed by Redflex on the basis that it has not been properly calculated in accordance with the
terms of the transaction documentation. The Partnership has calculated the Exit Price as approximately $5.2 million, which would equate to
the issue of 2,102,175 shares in Redflex Holdings Limited (or approximately 2.5% of the issued capital).

Redflex, having regard to all provisions relating to this calculation set out in the transaction documents, and having sought legal advice in this
regard, is of the opinion that the Exit Price is approximately $25,000 or 11,658 shares.

The Company has sought professional advice on the implications of the Partnership and the ATO's actions, and the Directors advise that at
this stage they do not believe that the issue of the revised assessments by the ATO, or the Exit Notice issued by the Partnership, have given
rise to any liahility of the Company under the transaction.
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NOTE 21

NOTE 22

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENTS
(a) Primary - Business Segments

Revenue from customers outside the
Consolidated Entity

Revenue from sale of goods & services
Revenue from fee for service contracts
Interest revenue

Other

Total segment revenue

Consolidated operating profit before tax
Segment assets

Segment Liabilities

Other segment Information

Acquisition of property plant & equipment

Depreciation
Amortisation

(b) Secondary - Geographical Segments

Revenue from sale of goods & services
Revenue- fee for service contracts
Total revenue

Segment assets

Acquisition of property plant & equipment &
intangibles

Consolidated Entity

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03

$ $ $ $
Corporate Communications Traffic 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
Total Total

$(000) $(000) $(000) $(000) $(000)
0 8,473 7,334 15,807 12,998

0 0 17,253 17,253 10,501
80 0 0 80 17
0 172 0 172 0
80 8,645 24,587 33,312 23,517
(1,444) (946) 5,705 3,315 (3,736)
2,016 11,353 45,799 59,168 44,768
195 758 8,031 9,984 8,125
240 401 15,805 16,446 6,587
39 346 3,427 3,812 2,939
20 554 423 997 768
Australia USA Other 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
Total Total
$(000) $(000} $(000) $(000) $(000)
5,480 8,605 1,722 15,807 12,999
0 17,253 0 17,253 10,501
5,480 25,858 1,722 33,060 23,500
19,821 39,247 0 59,168 44,768
736 15,710 0 16,446 6,587

The Consolidated Entity's companies are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services they
provide, with each segment offering different products and servicing different markets.

The Traffic division operates within two key markets, the USA and Australia. The USA Traffic business is predominantly a Build own cperate
and maintain business providing fully outsourced traffic enforcement programs to cities and townships. The Australian and International traffic
business involves the sale of traffic enforcement products to those markets.

The Communications business involves the sale of a variety of communication based solutions to world markets, often via USA based prime

contractors.

The Segmental split segregates the primary business units into revenue from recurring fee for service business and revenue related to the sale
of goods and services. The geographical split recognises the countries in which the work is transacted. The corporate division represents the
Group’s Head Office which is based in Melbourne, Australia.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Net tangible asset backing per share

Earnings used in calculating basic and diluted eamings per share
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares on issue used in

calculation of basic earnings per share.
Effect of dilutive securities (Share Options})

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares on issue used in

calculation of diluted earnings per share.

4.36 cents (6.6 cents)
4.20 cents (6.6 cents)
49.1 cents 440 cents
3,315.686 (3,736,886)
76,014,688 56,250,530
3,173,044 0
79,187,732 56,250,530
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Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
3 $ $ $
NCTE23  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms
and conditions unless otherwise stated. These transactions relate to the
day to day activities between companies in the Group and the following
amounts represent the net movements in loans during the year.
Provision of interest free unsecured loans to wholly owned Subsidiaries
from related entities 0 0 6,398,994 6,665,173
to related entities 0 0 65,211,692 54,091,829

The ultimate holding Company is Redflex Holdings Limited

During the year the Company maintained a funding facility with Second Tee Pty Ltd. Mr. Robin Debernardi and Mr. Chris Cooper are Directors
of Redflex Holdings Limited and Directors of Second Tee Pty Ltd and have a financial interest in Second Tee Pty Ltd. In October 2002 Redflex
Holdings limited borrowed AUD 3.3 million at an interest rate of 12% pa. The loan was repaid in January 2003 from the proceeds of the equity
raising. No formal facility exists with Second Tee Pty Ltd; however a charge over the assets and undertakings of the Company and certain
subsidiaries remains in the event the Company may want to reestablish a facility.

The Directors consider that the transaction was conducted on an arms length basis and on normal commercial terms.
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NOTE 24

FINANCIAL {INSTRUMENTS

a) Interest Rate Risk

(i) Financial Assets

Cash

Receivables - trade

Short Term deposits

Receivables — Other Corporations
Total Financial Assets

The weighted average interest rate relating to term deposits is 1%.
(ii) Financial Liabilities

Bank Borrowings

Lease Liabiliies

Payables

Total Financial Liabilities

The weighted average interest rate relating to bank borrowings is 3.1%

b) Net Fair Values

(i) Financial Assets

Cash

Receivables - Trade & Other
Receivables — Other Corporations
Term deposits

Total Financial Assets

(ii) Financial Liabilities
Bank Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

Payables

Total Financial Liabilities

c) Credit Risk Exposure

Consolidated Entity

Redflex Holdings Limited

30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
2,780,450 1,070,124 0 0
0 0 7,620,986 4,950,266
1,239,898 1,112,425 0 0
0 0 556,716 645,221
4,020,348 2,182,549 8,177,712 5,595,487
3,761,801 2,687,373 0 0
444,923 252,978 0 0

o] 0 4,699,463 4,429,511
4,206,724 2,940,351 4,699,463 4,429,511
Carrying amount per Aggregate
Statement of net fair

Financial Position value
30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-03
$ $ $ $
2,780,450 1,070,124 2,780,450 1,070,124
7,620,996 4,950,266 7,620,996 4,950,266
556,716 645,221 556,716 645,221
1,239,898 1,112,425 1,239,898 1,112,425
12,198,060 7,778,036 12,198,060 7,778,036
3,761,801 2,687,373 3,761,801 2,687,373
444,943 252978 444,943 252,978
4,699,463 4,429,511 4,699,463 4,429,511
8,906,207 7,369,862 8,906,207 7,369,862

* The Consolidated Entity's maximum exposures to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial assets, is the
carrying mount of those assets as indicated in the Staterment of Financial Position.

» Redflex Holdings Limited, on behalf of the Communications business, has taken out Foreign Currency options pertaining to future
receivables arising from future milestones to be invoiced which are either known or can be reliably estimated and denominated in USD.
Should the AUD/USD be below the strike price the Options will be allowed to lapse and the mere favourable rates taken on the day.

» Options totalling USD1.5 million with progressive expiry dates through to the end of FY2005 have been taken out. These will ensure
the USD receivables will be converted at no worse than .71 cents {average) while allowing potential benefits to be realised should currency

movements be favourable.

* Options totalling USD 812,000 with progressive expiry dates through to the end of FY05 have also been taken out. These Options will
ensure the USD receivables will be converted at no worse than .73 cents while allowing potential benefits to be realised should currency
movements be favourable down to a conversion rate of .84 cents (average).

* Redflex has also taken a forward cover position for USD 408,000 at a rate of .7122 against a USD receivable
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NOTE 25

NOTE 26

PAGE 42

SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

There were no significant events subseqguent to year end and prior to the date of this report that have not been dealt with elsewhere in this
report.

IMPACT OF ADOPTING AASB EQUIVALENTS TC IASB STANDARDS

Redflex Holdings Limited has commenced transitioning its accounting policies and financial reporting from current Australian standards to
Australian equivalents of International Financial reporting standards (IFRS). The Company has allocated internal resources and engaged
expert consultants to perform diagnostics and conduct impact assessments to isolate key areas that will be impacted by the transition to
IFRS. As the Company has a June 30 year end, priority has been given to considering the preparation of an opening statement of financial
position in accordance with AASB equivalents as at 1 July 2004. This will form the basis of accounting for Australian equivalents of IFRS in the
future, and is required when Redflex prepares its first fully IFRS compliant financial report for the year ended 30 June 2006. Following are key
areas where accounting policies will change and may have an impact on the financial report. At this stage the Company has not been able to
reliably quantify the impacts on the financial report.

Classification of Financial Instruments

Under AASB13% Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, financial instruments will be required to be classified into one of five
categories which will, in turn, determine the accounting treatment of the item. The classifications are

Loans and receivables — measured at cost, held to maturity

Loans and recelvables — measured at amortised cost, held for trading

Loans and receivables — measured at fair value, with fair value changes charged to profit or loss
Loans and receivables — measured at fair value, with fair value changes taken to equity
Non-trading liabilities — measured at amortised cost.

This will resultin a change in the current accounting policy that does not classify financial instruments. Current measurement is at amortised
cost. The future financial effect of this change in accounting policy is not yet known as the classification and measurement process has not
yet been fully completed.

Hedge accounting

Under AASB139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, hedges are able to be separately identified and documented in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 39. Accordingly, all gains and losses on the contracts will be recognized in the income statement.

Goodwill

Under the Australian equivalent to {RFS3 Business Combinations, goodwill acquired upon the acquisition of the assets and business
operations of Poltech and Locktronics (See Note ) will not be amortised but subject to annual impairment testing. This will result in a change
in the Group'sicurrent accounting policy which amortises goodwill over its useful life but not exceeding ten years. Under the new paolicy.
amortisation will no longer be charged, but goodwill will be written down to the extent it is impaired. Reliable estimation of the future financial
effects of this change in accounting policy is impracticable as the conditions under which impairment will be assessed are not yet known.

Impairment of assets

Under the Australian equivalent to IAS36 Impairment of assets the recoverable amount of an asset is determined as the higher of net selling
price and value in use. It is expected that the value in use measurement will exceed net selling price. This will result in a change in the group’s
current accounting policy which determines the recoverable amount of an asset on the basis of discounted cash flows. Under the new policy
it is possible that impairment of assets will be recognized sooner and that the amount of write-downs will be greater. Reliable estimation of the
future financial effects of this change in accounting policy is impracticable as the conditions under which impairment will be assessed are not
yet known.

Intangible assets

Under the Australian equivalent to 1AS 38 Intangible Assets, costs incurred in the research phase of the development of an interally generated
intangible must be expensed. This will result in a change in the group's current accounting policy which allows for the capitalization of costs
incurred in the research phase of an internally generated intangible asset where future benefits are expected beyond reasonable doubt. Under
the new policy, all research costs will be written off as incurred. Reliable estimation of the future financial effects of this change in accounting
policy cannot yet be identified; however an amount may be required to be adjusted against opening retained earnings for the amount that
does not meet the recognition requirements under IFRS.
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Share based payments

Under AASB2 Share based payments, the Company will be required to determine the fair value of Options issued to employees as
remuneration and recognize as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance. This statement is not limited to Options and also
extends to other forms of equity based remuneration. It applies to all share-based payments issued after 7 November 2002 which have not
vested as at 1 January 2005. Reliable estimation of the future financial effects of this change in accounting policy is impracticable as the
details of future equity based remuneration plans are unknown.

Income Taxes

Under the Australian equivalent to IAS 12 Income Taxes, the Company will be required to use a Balance sheet liability method which focuses
on the tax effects of transactions and other events that effect amounts recognized in either the Statement of Financial Performance or a tax-
based balance sheet. The change in accounting standard is expected to coincide with the utilization of carry forward tax losses and the
recognition of the tax effect on both timing differences relating to the differing treatments used for book and tax differences. The capital gains
tax effect of asset revaluations arising from asset impairment reviews will be recognized. It is not expected that there will be any further material
impact as a result of adoption of this standard.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Upon transition to the adoption of IFRS the Company has the option to reset the Foreign currency translation reserve to zero. At this stage the
Company believes it will elect to exercise this option. The reset will be offset against Retained Earnings on the Statement of Financial Position.

PAGE 43




UL o L [ L UN L L UN U NN L U U N TN/ VLl N/ 00U

iﬁgERN.gT& SYOUNG £ 120 Collins Street aTel 6139288 8000
Melbourne VIC 3000 Fax 61 39654 6166
Australia DX 293 Melbourne

GPO Box 67
Melbourne VIC 3001

Independent andit report to members of Redflex Holdings Limited

Scope

The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance,
statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors” declaration for
Redflex Holdings Limited (the company) and the consolidated entity, for the year ended 30 June 2004, The
consolidated entity comprises both the company and the entities it controlled during that year.

The directors of the company are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and fair view
of the financial position and performance of the company and the consolidated entity, and that complies with
Accounting Standards in Australia, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes
responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to
prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the
financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the
members of the company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in
order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. The
nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the
inherent limitations of intemal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence.
Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting Standards in Australia,
and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our
understanding of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position, and of their performance as
represented by the results of their operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

. examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial report, and

) assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on
internal controls.

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately reflected
in the financial report. These and our other procedures did not include consideration or judgement of the
appropriateness or reasonableness of the business plans or strategies adopted by the directors and
management of the company.

Independence
We are independent of the company, and have met the independence requirements of Australian professional
ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.

Liability limited by the Accountants Scheme, approved
under the Protessional Standards Act 1994 (NSW)
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Audit opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of Redflex Holdings Limited is in accordance with:
(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

6)] giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Redflex Holdings Limited and the
consolidated entity at 30 June 2004 and of their performance for the year ended on that date;
and

{ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001,
and

AN

) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.
David Petersen
Partner

Fonut 4 ?’a
Melbourne

Emst & Young
Date: S%)LQW(’” M
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ASX Additional Information
Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange and not shown elsewhere in this report is as follows. This information is current as at 23
September 2004.

There were 3,972 holders of fully paid Ordinary Shares. The voting rights attached to these shares are such that every member present in person or
represented by proxy or representative shall have one vote and on a poll every member present or by proxy or representative shall have one vote for every

share held.

The distribution schedule of holders of fully paid Ordinary Shares is:

Holding range No of Holders Units Percent
1-1000 665 437,767 0.53
1001 - 5000 1,668 4,643,382 5.58
5001 - 10000 725 5,453,288 6.56
10001 - 100000 834 21,231,392 25.53
100001 - over 80 51,395,598 61.80

3,972 83,161,428 100.00

The names and percentage holding of the twenty largest holders of fully paid Ordinary Shares are:

Units Held at end of Percent of Issued
Name

period Capital
INVIA CUSTODIAN PTY LIMITED<THIRTY FIVE A/C> 4,579,811 551
INVESTACO PTY LTD 3,716,594 4.47
WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED 3,637,194 4.37
MS CHENG MAN OY 3,525,636 4.24
INVIA CUSTODIAN PTY LIMITED <BLACK A/C> 2,995,100 3.60
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 2.584,860 3.1
MR MELFORD HENRY RUSSELL ROBERTS 2,115,324 2.54
JP MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 2,084,002 2.51
VERTEX BIANCA NOMINEES PTY LTD 2,044,973 2.46
NELLSTAR PTY LTD 1,937,406 2.33
C'CONNOR HOLDINGS PTY LTD 1,603,519 1.93
CONINGSBY NOMINEES PTY LTD<SUPER FUND A/C 1,437,857 1.73
ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED 908.666 1.09
MR GRAHAM WILLIAM DAVIE 906.677 1.08
SILVERLENE PTY LTD 790,147 0.95
BLUE JADE PTY LTD 730,371 0.88
DORION HOLDINGS LIMITED 692,900 0.83
MERRILL LYNCH (AUSTRALIA) NOMINEES PTY LTD 666,280 0.80
MR SYDNEY HO 665,900 0.80
DPV NOMINEES PTY LTD <DALY FAMILY A/C> 665,352 0.80
Top 20 holders of Ordinary Fully Paid Shares 38,601,080 46.41

The names of substantial shareholders who have notified the Company in accordance with section 6718 of the Corporations Act 2001 are:

Thorney Holdings Pty Ltd - 6,860,991 shares

CPTION HOLDER INFORMATION
At 23 September 2004 there were no quoted Options over Ordinary Shares.

The register of securities is kept by Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd at Yarra Falls, 452 Johnston Street, Abbotsford, Victoria, Australia.
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